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March 5, 2021

To the Honorable Mayor, Vice Mayor, Town Council, and the Citizens of the Town
of Southwest Ranches, Florida:

We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the
Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida (the Town), for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2020. Although Florida Statutes requires that every general-purpose local government
publish within nine months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of audited
financial statements, the Government Finance Officers' Association (GFOA) recommends
that local governments publish same within six months. Therefore, in addition to meeting
legal requirements, the report represents the Town's continued strong support of full
financial disclosure in the timeliest manner. This philosophy is reflected by the informative
financial analysis provided by the Town's Finance Department and the exhibits and
statistical tables included herein. The financial statements have been audited by Keefe
McCullough, Certified Public Accountants. The independent auditor has issued an
unmodified opinion that this report fairly represents the financial position of the Town in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

The CAFR's role is to assist in making policy decisions and to assist in providing
accountability and transparency to the citizenry by:

e Comparing actual financial results with the legally adopted budget, where
appropriate;

e Assessing financial condition and results of operations;

e Assisting in determining compliance with finance related laws, rules and regulations;
and

e Assisting in evaluating the efficiency and effectiveness of Town operations.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and
fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the
Town. We believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material respects; that it is
presented in a manner designed to fairly present the financial position and results of
operations of the Town; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain
an understanding of the Town's financial activity have been included.

As previously mentioned, Keefe McCullough CPA, independent auditors, have issued
unmodified opinions on the Town of Southwest Ranches financial statements for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2020. The independent auditors’ report is located at the
front of the financial section of this report. The Town'’s financial statements have been



prepared in conformity with GAAP as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). The Town’s Management Discussion and Analysis document
(the MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditors’ report and provides a
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. MD&A
compliments this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

ACCOUNTING AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

Management of the Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the Town are protected from loss,
theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the
preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The internal control structure is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The
concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that:

e The cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and
e The valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.
PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

The Town comprises approximately thirteen (13) square miles, with a 2019 census
population estimate of 7,957 and is located in the southwest portion of Broward County,
a major metropolitan area. The Town motto since its establishment is “Preserving our
Rural Lifestyle” but is located between the three major urban cities: Davie (population
estimate of 106,306), Pembroke Pines (population estimate of 173,591) and Weston
(population estimate of 71,166). The neighboring cities provide a wealth of attractions,
business and amenities for use by the residents of the Town. Accordingly, the residents
benefit from this close association with these urban neighbors because the Town does
not need to provide for these services.

The Town was incorporated on June 6, 2000. The Town's current Charter was amended
by the citizens on November 4, 2003, on November 7, 2006, on November 2, 2010 and
on November 6, 2018. The Town operates under the Council-Administrator form of
government where the Mayor and four Council Members must live in residential districts,
are elected at large and appoint a Town Administrator and Town Financial Administrator.
The Town Council establishes policy for the operation of the government, enacts
ordinances for the safety, welfare, and orderly interaction of the citizens of the Town,
adopts a millage rate and annual budget, appoints the Town Attorney and Town Clerk,
as well as members to various advisory boards, agencies, and authorities within the
Town, and engages the independent auditor.

The financial reporting entity (the Town of Southwest Ranches) includes all funds of the
primary government (i.e., the Town of Southwest Ranches as legally defined), as well as
all its component units. Component units are legally separate entities for which the Town
of Southwest Ranches is financially accountable or the nature and significance of the
relationship between the Town and the entity is such that exclusion would cause the
Town'’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.



The Town has identified one component unit: The Southwest Ranches Volunteer Fire
Rescue, Inc. is reported as a blended component unit of the Town and its governing body
is composed of the members of the Town Council. Additional information can be found in
Note 1 of the notes to the basic financial statements.

SERVICES PROVIDED

The Town contracts for all major Town services including police, fire, emergency medical
services, building inspections, code compliance, planning & zoning, information technology
and solid waste & recycling. The Town also has employees to administer all contracts,
grants, and daily operations of the Town as well as provide basic municipal services
including parks, recreation, and general government services.

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when
it is considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment. Despite the
economic conditions and impact of most recently a Covid-19 pandemic or from Hurricane
Irma on September 10, 2017, the Town has maintained its strong financial position
through prudent planning and fiscal actions to reduce or contain costs.

The Town has real estate sales and values with an increase as most other governments
in Florida and in the nation; however, the Town has a better than average business cycle
than other communities due to the composition of its economy. Specifically, the Town
primarily consists of an affluent residential housing stock of 2,629 units with a minimum
one-acre and larger single-family estates.

In 2019, the Town experienced a 3.63% increase in total taxable assessed value and a
4.67% increase in 2020. Accordingly, the 2020 total taxable assessed values exceed the
2019 former record highest total taxable assessed valuation.

The Town has made it a policy to establish reserves to offset unanticipated expenses and
ensure that a funding source exists in the event of a setback in the continuation of positive
economic conditions. The General Fund has an unassigned fund balance equal to 31.2%
of the adopted FY 2021 General Fund operating budget.

On a long-term financial perspective, the Town has identified all capital asset and
infrastructure projects under a five-year capital improvement plan (CIP). This five-year
CIP serves as a quick reference for a project timeline and identifies current and future
funding requirements. Commencing in FY 2015, the Town implemented a Transportation
Surface and Drainage Ongoing Rehabilitation (TSDOR) program with the goal of
preserving and extending the life of the Town’s paved streets. The TSDOR program
addresses improvements for every Town road over a 25+ year period. Five capital
projects, including TSDOR have been fully or partially funded during the fiscal year 2020
budget process.

In the 2021 Session, the Florida Legislature is considering reducing or eliminating local
business and communication service taxes as well as pushing additional costs down to
local governments as unfunded mandates. The Town is closely monitoring these
proposals and their potential impacts and limitations to Florida municipalities. The



consequences of a combination of several of the proposals being considered could have
a significant impact on the Town’s ability to maintain and/or improve services to residents.

The Town adheres to several financial policies that impact daily operations and the
current period’s financial statements. The Town’s budgetary and financial policies
provide the basic framework for the overall fiscal management of the Town. The following
policies were used in the development of current activities.

Revenue Policy:

The Town maintains a diversified revenue system to avoid reliance on property taxes.
Charges for services are being provided at full cost recovery for services for individual
users. One-time revenue will never be used for ongoing operating costs.

Debt Policy:

The Town has no General Obligation debt outstanding and believes that debt is a
necessary and integral part of conducting its operations on a financially sound and
equitable basis to all taxpayers. The Town reviews as well as evaluates its existing
obligations and future borrowing needs regularly.

During 2018, due to primarily vegetative debris collection and removal impact from
Hurricane Irma on September 10, 2017, $3.7 million of the Town’s new $10.0 million
variable rate emergency line of credit was activated with collateralization provided
from anticipated future reimbursement from Federal (FEMA) and State (FDEM)
regulatory authorities. In FY 2019, $1.9 million in total was received from both FEMA
and FDEM and was appropriately utilized to pay down the outstanding balance to $1.8
million. During FY 2020, slightly over $1.8 million was also received from both FEMA
and FDEM and was also utilized to fully pay down the outstanding balance to zero.

In 2016, the Town obtained financing for the purchase of $8,100,000 in public purpose
Land at a 3.25% interest rate and practically simultaneously retired $1,640,000 of
Series 2001 debt which carried a 5% interest rate utilizing general fund unassigned
fund balance. In 2015, the Town obtained financing for the purchase of a $206,500
Commercial Chassis Volunteer Fire Pumper vehicle while, during 2013, the Town
refinanced a portion of its 2001 debt at a lower interest rate resulting in receiving over
$300,000 in present value cash savings for parks, recreation and open spaces capital
improvements. The Town also borrowed $439,139 and $360,860 in 2010 and 2012,
respectively from a line of credit subsequently converted to a fixed note, to fund
roadway and drainage improvements. Finally, the Town entered into a $2,500,000
note with a financial institution for the purpose of refunding an existing pooled
commercial loan and to fund the move to a new permanent Town Hall building during
2012. These fixed rate loans, except for the retired Series 2001, are still outstanding
at September 30, 2020.

LONG RANGE FINANCIAL PLANNING

The Town Council has adopted a five-year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) to guide
in the development of the annual capital budget as well as assist in its associated
operating maintenance to achieve the long-term goal of a financially sound Town. The
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor, Town Council and Town Administrator
Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Southwest
Ranches, Florida, (the “Town”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2020, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

KMCcpa.com | 6550 N Federal Hwy, 4th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 Phone: 954.771.0896 Fax: 954.938.9353
Top 25 Accounting Firms | South Florida Business Journal Top 400 Accounting Firms in the U.S. | INSIDE Public Accounting
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida, as of
September 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and the budgetary comparison information on the pages 4-14 and 42-44 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida’s basic financial statements. The introductory section,
combining and individual nonmajor fund statements and schedules, and statistical section are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America by us. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and
schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 5, 2021,
on our consideration of the Town’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Town’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

Knfy MeCaltugl

KEEFE McCULLOUGH

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
March 5, 2021






MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
As of and For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

Within this section of the comprehensive annual financial report for the Town of Southwest Ranches (the
Town), the Town’s management is pleased to provide this narrative discussion and analysis of the financial
activities of the Town for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020. The Town’s financial performance is
dri_scusse_d and analyzed within the context of the accompanying financial statements and disclosures following
this section.

2020 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The Town’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities by $58,641,143 (total
net position) as of September 30, 2020.

e Total net position increased $1,581,438 even with including the impact of Covid-19 pandemic
expenditures and is comprised of the following:

(1) Net investment in capital assets of $50,076,903 includes property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation and related debt.

(2) Net position of $948,304 is restricted by constraints imposed on the Town in the amount of
$398,610 for transportation, $292,113 and $39,024 for fire control and the volunteer fire
department, for building $210,004, and $8,553 for public safety, respectively, all from outside
the Town such as grantors, laws, or regulations.

(3) The Town’s total debt decreased $2,350,130 (net) to a total of $9,659,946 due to a complete
reduction in total emergency line of credit outstanding of $1,761,698 and normal amortization of
$588,432. Total debt includes loans as well as notes payable.

(4) Unrestricted net position consists of $7,615,936 that may be used to meet the Town’s ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

e The Town’s governmental funds reported total ending fund balance of $7,927,315 at September 30,
2020. This compares to the prior year total ending fund balance of $6,877,389 showing an increase
of $1,049,926 during the current year.

e Atthe end of the current fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $4,153,041
or 31% of total General Fund expenditures and net transfers for 2020. The unrestricted fund balance
for the General Fund was $3,939,370 or 32% of total General Fund expenditures and net transfers for
2019.

e Overall, the Town continues to maintain a healthy financial position despite the effects of a worldwide
Covid-19 pandemic.

The above financial highlights are explained in more detail in the “financial analysis” section of this
document.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This Management Discussion and Analysis document introduces the Town’s basic financial statements. The
basic financial statements include: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements,
and (3) notes to the basic financial statements. The Town also includes in this report additional information
;[c(_) sulpplement the basic financial statements. Comparative data is presented to allow comparison to the prior
iscal year.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The Town’s annual report includes two government-wide financial statements. These statements provide both
long-term and short-term information about the Town's overall financial status. Financial reporting at this
level uses a perspective similar to that found in the private sector with its basis in accrual accounting and
elimination or reclassification of activities between funds.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
As of and For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

The first of these government-wide statements is the Statement of Net Position. This is the government-wide
statement of position presenting information that includes all the Town’s assets, deferred outflows, and
liabilities, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town as a whole is improving or
deteriorating. Evaluation of the overall health of the Town would extend to other nonfinancial factors such
as diversification of the taxpayer base or the condition of the Town’s infrastructure, in addition to the financial
information provided in this report.

The second government-wide statement is the Statement of Activities, which reports how the Town’s net
position changed during the current fiscal year. All current year revenues and expenses are included regardless
of when cash is received or paid. An important purpose of the design of the statement of activities is to show
the financial reliance of the Town's distinct activities or functions on revenues provided by the Town's
taxpayers.

Both government-wide financial statements distinguish governmental activities of the Town principally
supported by taxes from business-type activities intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs
through user fees and charges. Governmental activities include general government, public safety, community
services and development, parks and recreation, transportation, interest, and other fiscal charges, and finally,
emergency services (as a result of impact from the Covid-19 pandemic).

The government-wide financial statements are presented on pages 15 and 16 of this report.
Fund Financial Statements

A fund is an accountability unit used to maintain control over resources segregated for specific activities or
objectives. The Town uses funds to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related laws and
regulations. Within the basic financial statements, fund financial statements focus on the Town’s most
significant funds rather than the Town as a whole. Major funds are separately reported while all others are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for nonmajor funds is provided in the
form of combining statements in a later section of this report.

The Town has two types of funds:

Governmental funds are reported in the fund financial statements and encompass the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, the focus is very different
with fund statements providing a distinctive view of the Town’s governmental funds. These statements report
short-term fiscal accountability focusing on the use of spendable resources and balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the year. They are useful in evaluating annual financing requirements of
governmental programs and the commitment of spendable resources for the near-term.

Since the government-wide focus includes the long-term view, comparisons between these two perspectives
may provide insight into the long-term impact of short-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and the governmental fund operating statement provide a reconciliation to assist in
understanding the differences between these two perspectives.

The basic governmental fund financial statements are presented on pages 17 and 19 of this report.

Individual fund information for nonmajor governmental funds is found in combining statements in a later
section of this report.

Proprietary funds are reported in the fund financial statements and generally report services for which the
Town charges customers a fee. The Town’s proprietary fund (Solid Waste Fund) is classified as an enterprise
fund. The enterprise fund essentially encompasses the same function reported as business-type activities in
the government-wide statements.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements are presented on pages 21 - 23 of this report.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
As of and For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements provide information essential to a full understanding
of the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements begin on
page 24 of this report.

Required Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information. Budgetary comparison schedules are included as required supplementary
information for the General Fund and the Transportation Fund. Budgetary comparison schedules for all other
governmental funds can be found in the supplementary information section of this report. These schedules
demonstrate compliance with the Town’s adopted and final revised budget.

Supplementary Information

As discussed, the Town reports major funds in the basic financial statements. Combining and individual fund
statements and schedules for nonmajor funds are presented in a supplementary information section of this report
beginning on page 45.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN AS A WHOLE

The Town’s net position at fiscal year-end is $58,641,143. The following table provides a summary of the
Town’s net position:

Summary of Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Assets:
Current assets $ 8545380 $ 7,221,379 $ 876,931 $ 2,499,063 $ 9,422,311 $ 9,720,442
Non-current assets:
Other 359,210 359,210 - - 359,210 359,210
Capital assets 59,708,055 59,909,601 - - 59,708,055 59,909,601
Total assets 68,612,645 67,490,190 876,931 2,499,063 69,489,576 69,989,253
Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred amount on refunding 28,794 34,552 - - 28,794 34,552
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 1,099,672 827,448 117,609 126,576 1,217,281 954,024
Long-term liabilities 9,659,946 10,248,378 - 1,761,698 9,659,946 12,010,076
Total liabilities 10,759,618 11,075,826 117,609 1,888,274 10,877,227 12,964,100
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 50,076,903 49,695,775 - - 50,076,903 49,695,775
Restricted 948,304 1,305,241 - - 948,304 1,305,241
Unrestricted 6,856,614 5,447,900 759,322 610,789 7,615,936 6,058,689
Total net position $ 57,881,821 $56,448916 $ 759,322 $ 610,789 $ 58,641,143 $ 57,059,705




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
As of and For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

The following chart reports the Town’s total net position balances from fiscal year 2011-2020.

Total Net Position
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Note over the last ten years, the total net positions have increased $9,681,882 even with impacts during fiscal
years 2018 and 2019 of two separate Hurricanes named Irma and Dorian as well as a Pandemic known as
Covid-19 currently.

Current assets in governmental activities increased while business-type activities decreased in fiscal year
September 30, 2020. Cash, investments, and receivables for governmental activities increased $1,324,001
while business-type activities decreased $1,622,132.

The Town continues to maintain high current ratios. The current ratio compares current assets to current
liabilities and is an indication of the ability to pay current obligations. The current ratio for governmental
activities is 7.8 to 1 as compared to 8.7 to 1 at September 30, 2019. The current ratio for business-type activities
is 7.5to 1 as compared to 19.7 to 1 at September 30, 2019. Overall, the total current ratio at September 30, 2020
decreased to 7.7 to 1 as compared to 10.2 to 1 at September 30, 2019. The decrease was primarily due to a
decrease in receivables ultimately collected from both the Federal Emergency Management Agency and the
Florida Department of Emergency Management for Hurricane Irma debris collection, disposal as well as
monitoring payments expended during fiscal years 2017 and 2018.

The Town reported a positive balance in net position for both governmental and business-type activities.
During 2020, changes in net position increased $1,432,905 and $148,533 for governmental activities and
business-type activities, respectively. The former is primarily due to increased building and permitting
revenues combined with a reduction in expenses including events, non-essential travel and training resulting
from the Covid-19 pandemic. Accordingly, the Town's overall financial position is healthy at fiscal year-end
2020 and it has remained stable even under continued economic uncertainties from Covid-19.

Note that approximately 87.0% of the governmental activities’ total assets are tied up in capital assets. The
Town uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens. The business-type activities do not have
capital assets. By combining governmental activities with business-type activities, the Town has invested
approximately 85.9% of its total assets in capital assets, as presented in the government-wide statement of net
position.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)

As of and For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida

The following table provides a summary of the Town’s changes in net position:

Summary of Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-type Percentage
Activities Activities Total of Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020
Revenues:
Program:
Charges for services $ 4,146,292 $ 3,992,689 $ 1,714527 $ 1,795,973 5,860,819 $ 5,788,662 36.5%
Solid waste emergency
services - - 70,612 3,949,263 70,612 3,949,263 0.4%
Operating grants and
contributions 12,143 124,974 - - 12,143 124,974 0.1%
Capital grants and
contributions 560,206 157,173 - - 560,206 157,173 3.5%
General:
Ad valorem taxes 6,633,543 6,549,630 - - 6,633,543 6,549,630 41.3%
Other taxes 1,889,816 1,877,100 - - 1,889,816 1,877,100 11.8%
Intergovernmental 757,808 830,865 - - 757,808 830,865 4. 7%
Investment earnings 106,353 170,060 20,098 21,248 126,451 191,308 0.8%
Miscellaneous 165,179 148,308 65 130 165,244 148,438 1.0%
Total revenues 14,271,340 13,850,799 1,805,302 5,766,614 16,076,642 19,617,413 100.0%
Program Expenses:
General government 2,343,760 2,190,153 - - 2,343,760 2,190,153 16.2%
Public safety 6,784,682 6,417,516 - - 6,784,682 6,417,516 46.8%
Community services and
development 1,731,518 1,451,377 - - 1,731,518 1,451,377 11.9%
Parks and recreation 700,734 668,951 - - 700,734 668,951 4.8%
Transportation 1,165,497 1,132,102 - - 1,165,497 1,132,102 8.0%
Emergency services 12,094 4,244 16,590 126,668 28,684 130,912 0.2%
Interest and other fiscal
charges 321,442 439,232 - - 321,442 439,232 2.2%
Solid waste - - 1,418,887 1,388,587 1,418,887 1,388,587 9.8%
Total expenses 13,059,727 12,303,575 1,435,477 1,515,255 14,495,204 13,818,830 100.0%
Changes in net position
before transfers 1,211,613 1,547,224 369,825 4,251,359 1,581,438 5,798,583
Transfers 221,292 141,060 (221,292) (141,060) - -
Changes in net position 1,432,905 1,688,284 148,533 4,110,299 1,581,438 5,798,583
Beginning net position
(deficit) 56,448,916 54,760,632 610,789 (3,499,510) 57,059,705 51,261,122
Ending net position $ 57,881,821 $ 56,448,916 $ 759,322 $ 610,789 $ 58,641,143 $ 57,059,705

Governmental Activity Revenues

The Town is heavily reliant on Ad valorem (property) taxes to support governmental operations. Property
taxes provided 46.5% of the Town’s total governmental revenues as compared to 47.3% in fiscal year 20109.
Other taxes, which includes franchise and utility taxes, provided 13.2% and 13.6% of the Town’s total
governmental revenues for fiscal years 2020 and 2019, respectively. Additionally, because of the Town’s
healthy financial position, we have been able to earn $106,353 in investment earnings to support governmental

activities.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
As of and For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

Note that program revenues covered 36.1% of governmental operating expenditures as compared to 34.7% in
fiscal year 2019. This means that the government’s taxpayers and the Town’s other general revenues normally
fund 63.9% of the governmental activities, primarily from property taxes, other taxes, and unrestricted
intergovernmental revenue. As a result, the general economy has a major impact on the Town’s revenue
streams.

Governmental Activity Expenses

The following table presents the cost of each of the Town’s services, including the net costs (i.e., total cost
less program revenues generated by the activities). The net costs illustrate the financial burden that is placed
on the Town’s taxpavers by each of these services.

Governmental Activities

Total Cost Percentage Net Cost Percentage
of Services of Total of Services of Total
General government $ 2,343,760 17.9% $ (2,343,760) 28.1%
Public safety 6,784,682 52.0% (4,330,148) 51.9%
Community services and
development 1,731,518 13.3% (34,592) 0.4%
Parks and recreation 700,734 5.4% (697,826) 8.4%
Transportation 1,165,497 8.9% (605,291) 7.3%
Emergency services 12,094 0.1% (8,027) 0.1%
Interest and other fiscal
charges 321,442 2.5% (321,442) 3.9%
Total $ 13,059,727 100.0% $ (8,341,086) 100.0%

The public safety expenses total gross about 52% while net of program revenues total 51.9% of costs. The
public safety function generated %2,446,458 in user charges and $8,076 in operating grant revenues, which
offsets program costs. The community services and development expenditures total gross of 13.3% while net
of program revenues total 0.4%. The community services and development function generated $1,696,926 in
user charges, primarily from building permits, planning/zoning, engineering, and fire review fees of
$1,687,298. The transportation expenses total gross of 8.9% while net of program revenues total -7.3%. The
transportation function, which includes the sixth year of TSDOR capital improvements, was aided by capital
grant revenues of $560,206 which also offsets capital program costs. A Hurricane Dorian threat entailed
protective emergency service expenses total gross of 0.1% while net of operating program Hurricane Dorian
FEMA and FDEM reimbursements of $4,067 also total 0.1% of costs. Other total cost and net costs do not
differ substantially by percentage or by dollars for each service.

Business-Type Activities
The Town reports one major enterprise fund, Solid Waste.

Total operating revenues decreased $81,446 or approximately 4.5% due to successful management and legal
negotiations obtaining a permanent reduced residential contract life bulk disposal generation factor. This
factor combined with all the annual collection element contract adjustments enabled Town Council to adopt
and pass-through a net reduction in rates to customers while still retaining full cost recovery.
Intergovernmental, non-capital grants, comprising the realization and reimbursement for FY 2017 and FY
2018 Hurricane Irma expenditures decreased $3,878,651. Total operating expenses and all Hurricane Irma
emergency services related ex#enses decreased $79,778 or almost 5.3% due to slightly higher contractual and
recycling costs of $30,300 offset by a $110,078 reduction in and completion of all Hurricane Irma debris
collection, disposal and monitoring exgenses as compared to the prior year. The current ?/ear emergency line
of credit interest totaled $16,267 which was $101,161 less than the prior year as the full outstanding line of
credit was paid down with reimbursements received from federal (FEMA) and state (Florida Department of
Emergency Management) authorities. Other operating expenses decreased by $704 in fiscal year 2020 as
compared to fiscal year 2019 due to lower professional fees.

In total, the year-to-year change in operating income decreased $102,719 and net position decreased
$3,961,766, respectively resulting in a current year ending surplus net position of $759,322.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
As of and For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

FUND ANALYSIS
Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are reported in the fund statements with a short-term, inflow and outflow of spendable
resources focus. This information is useful in assessing resources available at the end of the year in
comparison with upcoming financing requirements. Governmental funds reported ending fund balances of
$7,927,315 compared to $6,877,389 at September 30, 2019.

The total governmental revenues exceeded expenditures by $828,634.

The General Fund revenues exceeded its expenditures by $2,562,131 as compared to $3,196,797 for fiscal
year 2019. Transfers in from Solid Waste of $251,160 as well as transfers to other funds totaling $2,618,208
offset this excess. The details of the General Fund’s financial operations are discussed below.

Governmental funds report total fund balance of $7,927,315. Of this year-end total, $948,304 is legally
restricted for: transportation ($398,610); fire control including volunteer fire operations ($331,137); public
safety ($8,553); and building ($210,004). $1,993,281 is committed to various projects: capital projects
($69,118); transportation ($1,922,934); and tree preservation ($1,229). $420,795 is assigned for the following
purposes - debt service ($217,623); and capital projects ($203,172). $411,894 is considered non-spendable
and $4,153,041 is unassigned and available for future appropriation within the General Fund.

The total ending fund balances of governmental funds show an increase of $1,049,926 or 28.4% decrease over
the prior year.

Major Governmental Funds

The Town reports three major governmental funds, the General Fund, Transportation Fund and the Capital
Projects Fund.

General Fund - The General Fund is the Town’s primary operating fund and the largest source of day-to-day
service delivery. The General Fund’s fund balance of $5,094,547 increased by $195,083 or almost 4% as
compared to an increase of $1,070,213 or 27.9% in 2019. The ending unassigned fund balance is considered
more than adequate, representing the equivalent of 37.9% of annual expenditures. This percentage compares
to 38.4% at September 30, 20109.

Ad valorem (property) taxes increased $83,913 or 1.3%. This increase relates to an increase in the taxable
value of property as the combined operating and transportation surface and drainage ongoing rehabilitation
(TSDOR) capital program millage rate decreased from the prior year. However, in total, all tax revenues were
$104,279 or 1.3% above those of 2019. Licenses and permits were $351,075 or 26.1% higher than the 2019
amount due to increased building and zoning permitting activity.

Overall, total General Fund expenditures increased $683,664 or 6.7% above the fiscal year 2019 level. The
most significant changes, by department, from fiscal year 2019 are described below.

General government costs, consisting of legislative, legal, executive and clerk administration, finance &
budget, and non-departmental departments were $147,312 higher than the 2019 amount primarily due to
increased litigation activity.

In total, public safety costs were up $349,382 or 5.7% above the 2019 amount. This increase is due to a 4.5%
annual contract escalator with the Town of Davie in addition to newly replaced police vehicles of .9% plus
.3% attributable by a total increase in Southwest Ranches Volunteer Fire department expenses, including
stipend payments.

10



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
As of and For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

Community services and development which consists of building, planning, code & zoning, and public works
increased $280,141 or 19.3% above those of 2019 primarily due to the aforementioned increased building,
zoning permitting activity and application fee volume, resulting in significantly higher contractual service
costs.

The 2020 parks and recreation amounts were $21,267 higher than the 2019 amount of $386,366. The major
portion of this increase is due from a partial year impact from higher grounds maintenance contract
implemented toward the end of FY 2020. Additionally, it shall be noted that an increase occurred with one
new Town park facility (Frontier Trails) operational for the entire FY 2020.

New for 2020, Covid-19 pandemic emergency service expenditures totaled $12,094 (or $7,850 higher than
FY 2019) resulting from the acquisition of personal protective and safety equipment which is still ongoing.
For 2019, Hurricane Dorian emergency services expenditures resulted from preparation and protective safety
measures incurred. Fortunately, this Hurricane did not ultimately strike or financially impact the Town.

In this fiscal year, the General Fund transferred $2,618,208 to other funds, which included $1,322,404 to the
Transportation Fund, $72,000 to the Capital Projects Fund, $1,028,791 to the Debt Service Fund, and
$195,013 to the Volunteer Fire Department Fund (a component unit). The Solid Waste Fund transferred
$251,160 to the General Fund.

Transportation Fund — This fund accounts for the Town’s share of the state gasoline and local option gas
taxes, which are restricted to transportation purposes, a state transportation appropriation grant, and an on-
going long-term transportation surface and drainage ongoing rehabilitation (TSDOR) capital program. In
fiscal year 2020, revenue of $719,891 of intergovernmental revenue was earned as compared to $335,067 in
fiscal year 2019 primarily related to an increase in state transportation appropriation grant. $467,192 was
expended on roadways including engineering, signage repairs and replacements and related personnel costs
during 2020 and, $843,049 on capital outlay comprising of: drainage improvements ($518,043); Guardrails
($96,701); and TSDOR ($228,305). The total legally restricted and committed transportation fund balance at
fiscal year-end 2020 was $398,610 and $1,949,985, respectively.

Capital Projects Fund - This fund is primarily financed from transfers from the General Fund, as indicated
above for both the current ($72,000) and prior ($241,095) fiscal year.

During fiscal year 2020, this fund spent $72,788 on capital outlay, which includes:

e Buildings/Fire Control Modular safety improvements $5,818
e Infrastructure improvements for Town Hall Safety $6,250
e Infrastructure improvements for Frontier Trails Park $60,720

Committed and assigned fund balance was $37,687 (primarily for Town Hall Safety) and $185,672,
respectively. The total capital project fund balance at fiscal year-end 2020 was $223,359.

Proprietary Fund

Proprietary fund statements share the same focus as the government-wide statements, reporting both short-
term and long-term information about financial status. The business-type activities analysis above discusses
the Town’s enterprise fund.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The General Fund’s budget was amended in this fiscal year to reflect Departmental line item reclassifications
and new Town Council initiatives.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
As of and For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

Intergovernmental revenues were under budget by $139,997 or 18.8% due to a grant reimbursable public
safety capital outlay project ($103,437) delayed and reduced state sales tax revenue sharing (approximately
$36,560) received than anticipated due to the Covid-19 pandemic. Fines and forfeitures were under budget
by $29,209 or 8.7% than anticipated as a result of lower traffic court revenue (approximately $25,209) as a
result of less street traffic and lower code enforcement and lien recoveries received (approximately $4,000)
also due to the Covid-19 pandemic. Investment income revenue were under budget by $16,732 or 18.0% due
to an unanticipated lower interest rate environment. All other revenue sources were slightly over budget but
generally consistent with the adopted budget. Overall, we ultimately recognized ($19,451) or 99.9% of the
revenue budget.

On the expenditure side, the Town’s actual expenditures for each department or function were less than
budgeted due to conservative budgeting and, where noted below, except for those pertaining to Covid-19
pandemic personal protective and safety equipment ($11,502), for its obvious reason. By function, general
governmental was $267,077 or 10.6% below the budget primarily due to lower than anticipated town
operating events, training and education, total public safety was $38,958 or less than .1% below the budget,
community services and development was $36,086 or 2.0% below the budget, parks and recreation was
$13,444 or 3.2% below the budget and capital outlay was $165,962 or 72.0% below the budget primarily due
to the aforementioned public safety capital outlay project delayed as well as lower than anticipated fire well
costs ($12,390).

Overall, the total General Fund budget was underspent by $510,025 or 4.5% specifically due to the above,
aforementioned items and lower general government operating expenditures including contractual services,
primarily due to the Covid-19 pandemic. Tight Departmental Director expenditure controls and monitoring
throughout also contributed to the underspending.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The Town's investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for governmental activities as of
September 30, 2020, was $59,708,055. The change in this net investment was a 0.3% decrease for
governmental activities. See Note 6 for additional information about changes in capital assets during the
fiscal year and outstanding at the end of the year.

The followina table provides a summary of capital asset activity:
Capital Assets

Governmental Activities

2020 2019

Non-depreciable assets:

Land $ 42,341,811 $ 42,341,811

Construction in progress 1,337,468 1,786,806

Total non-depreciable 43,679,279 44,128,617
Depreciable assets:

Infrastructure 25,233,812 24,532,754

Improvements other than buildings 5,963,630 5,278,971

Buildings and building improvements 3,659,467 3,653,649

Furniture and equipment 1,921,667 1,883,520
Total depreciable assets 36,778,576 35,348,894
Less: accumulated depreciation 20,749,800 19,567,910
Net book value - depreciable assets 16,028,776 15,780,984
Percentage depreciated 56% 55%
Total Capital Asset Net Book Value $ 59,708,055 $ 59,909,601
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
As of and For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

At September 30, 2020, the depreciable capital assets for governmental activities were 56% depreciated. This
compares to the 55% at September 30, 2019.

For governmental activities, the majority of the increase (decrease) of the balance of all non-depreciable and
depreciable asset accounts relates to the following projects:

e TSDOR Construction-in-progress $227,700

e Frontier Trails Park Construction-in-progress ($624,829)

e Drainage Projects Construction-in-progress (net) ($163,910)

e Guardrails Construction-in progress $96,701

e Generators Construction-in-progress $15,000

e Drainage Infrastructure $683,448

e Fire Wells #236, #181, #116, #378 Infrastructure $17,610

e Frontier Trails Park Improvements other than buildings $684,659
e Public Safety Modular Security Building Improvements $5,818
e Town Hall Furniture and equipment $18,179

e Public Safety-Volunteer Fire Furniture and equipment $19,968

Debt

The Town has no emergency line of credit outstanding at 9/30/2020 and reports it solely attributable to and
within its business-type activity for 9/30/2019. The series 2016 land acquisition note payable, series 2013 and
2011 revenue refunding notes payable as well as an equipment and other loan payable with financial
institutions are in governmental activities only. Overall, the Town of Southwest Ranches lowered its total debt
by $2,350,130 or 19.6% during the current year of which $1,761,698 was attributable to realized Federal
Emergency Management Agency and Florida Department of Emergency Management recoveries from
Hurricane Irma. More detailed information on long-term debt activity to the relevant disclosures in the notes
to the financial statements are found on pages 35-39. The following table reports long-term debt balances at
September 30, 2020 and 2019:

Outstanding Long-Term Debt

2020 2019

Governmental Activities:

TD Note Payable, 2016 $ 7,750,000 $ 7,750,000
TD Note Payable, 2013 1,324,900 1,525,400
TD Note Payable, 2011 350,949 623,229
TD Note Payable, Rosenbauer 84,111 110,761
Centennial Loan Payable 149,986 238,988
Sub-Total 9,659,946 10,248,378
Business-type Activities:

TD Emergency Line of Credit - 1,761,698
Grand Total $ 9,659,946 $ 12,010,076

The Town provides an optional single-employer defined benefit post-employment health care plan to eligible
employees. The Town does not make contributions to the Plan on behalf of retirees. In accordance with
GASB Statement No. 75, the Town has evaluated and determined that it is not necessary to record the total
OPEB liability of $61,765 as it is insignificant to the Town.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
As of and For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

A SUMMARY OF THE ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AFFECTING THE TOWN

The State of Florida, by constitution, does not have a state personal income tax, and, therefore, the State
operates primarily using sales, gasoline and corporate income taxes. Local governments (towns and cities,
counties, school boards) primarily rely on property and an array of permitted other taxes (utility taxes,
franchise fees and local business taxes) as well as intergovernmental revenues, including a new County shared
sales surtax restricted for transportation, for their governmental activities. For business-type activities and
certain governmental activities (building/construction services and parks, recreation and open space
programs), the user pays a related fee or charge associated with the service.

During a Covid-19 pandemic significantly impacting south florida economic, especially hospitality activity,
the unemployment rate for Broward County residents as of September 2020 and 2019 was 7.8% and 2.8%,
respectively and compares unfavorably to the State’s unemployment rate of 7.2% for September 2020 but
favorably at 3.2% for September 2019. However, the Town’s residents would expect to have a lower
unemployment rate than is reported for the county. Inflationary trends in the region continue to also compare
favorably to national indices, which is a positive sign. In addition, according to the U.S. Census Bureau (2015-
2019), the Town’s median household income of $124,591 compares favorably to the Nation’s and State’s as
well as the County’s median household income of $62,843, $55,660, and $59,547, respectively.

In the 2020-2021 adopted budget, we continue operating in a conservative economic environment due to the
Covid-19 pandemic. There are indications of a continued marginal increase in housing values and related
taxable values due to new residential development, improvements and rehabilitation. Additionally,
inflationary trends in the region compare more favorably to national indices.

Some of the key elements affecting the fiscal year 2020-2021 budget include:

e Relatively modest change in taxable values but expected to ellipse the 2020 record all-time highest
due to a primarily residential composition.

A shift in funding for Transportation infrastructure to a new County shared sales surtax.
Continuance of an extremely low interest yield environment.

Crude oil prices remain historically low and stable.

Modest growth rates of building construction and rehabilitation.

A slight decline in State of Florida shared revenues, especially from sales and gas taxes.

All of these factors result in many budget challenges in fiscal year 2020-2021 and beyond. Additionally, the
Town carefully monitors Florida Legislative initiatives and their future impact on the Town’s ability to
function at its present level.

The millage rate for fiscal year 2021 was lowered for the second straight year to 4.2500 representing the
Town’s regular operating rate of 4.2500 plus .0000 for the seventh year of a major transportation related
capital improvement project (TSDOR) as compared to 4.2125 plus .4439 for TSDOR for fiscal year 2020
totaling 4.6564, resulting in an anticipated net revenue reduction of ($603,947). Additionally, during the
current fiscal year, unassigned General Fund fund balance increased $213,671 to $4,153,041.

Also, the Town of Southwest Ranches has appropriated $73,000 and $17,500 of restricted and assigned
General Fund fund balance, respectively for spending in the 2020-2021 fiscal year.

CONTACTING THE TOWN’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town’s finances, comply with finance-
related laws and regulations, and demonstrate the Town’s commitment to public accountability and
transparency. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or request for additional
information should be addressed to the Town Financial Administrator, Town of Southwest Ranches, 13400
Griffin Road, Southwest Ranches, Florida 33330-2628.
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Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2020

Assets
Cash
Investments
Receivables
Intergovernmental receivables
Prepaid items
Assets held for resale
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated, net

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred charge on refunding

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Unearned revenues
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total Liabilities

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Transportation
Fire control and rescue services
Public safety
Building
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
5,824,887 $ 838,466 $ 6,663,353
1,401,660 - 1,401,660
569,660 9,000 578,660
696,489 29,465 725,954
52,684 - 52,684
359,210 - 359,210
43,679,279 - 43,679,279
16,028,776 - 16,028,776
68,612,645 876,931 69,489,576
28,794 - 28,794
977,101 117,609 1,094,710
122,397 - 122,397
174 - 174
607,000 - 607,000
9,052,946 - 9,052,946
10,759,618 117,609 10,877,227
50,076,903 - 50,076,903
398,610 - 398,610
331,137 - 331,137
8,553 - 8,553
210,004 - 210,004
6,856,614 759,322 7,615,936
57,881,821 $ 759,322 $ 58,641,143

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

September 30, 2020

Capital Nonmajor Total
General Transportation Projects Governmental  Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Assets
Cash $ 3484167 $ 1,844519 ¢ 223,359 % 272,842 % 5,824,887
Investments 1,401,660 - - - 1,401,660
Receivables 569,660 - - - 569,660
Intergovernmental
receivables 122,655 573,834 - - 696,489
Due from other funds - - - 3,850 3,850
Prepaid items 48,517 - - 4,167 52,684
Assets held for resale 359,210 - - - 359,210
Total Assets $ 5985869 $ 2,418,353 % 223,359 % 280,859 % 8,908,440
Liabilities and Fund
Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities $ 887,298 $ 69,758 $ - % 20,045 $ 977,101
Due to other funds 3,850 - - - 3,850
Unearned revenues 174 ) ) ) 174
Total Liabilities 891,322 69,758 - 20,045 981,125
Fund Balances
Non-spendable:
Prepaid items 48,517 - - 4,167 52,684
Assets held for resale 359,210 - - - 359,210
Restricted for:
Transportation - 398,610 - - 398,610
Fire control and rescue
services 292,113 - - 39,024 331,137
Public safety 8,553 - - - 8,553
Building 210,004 - - - 210,004
Committed for:
Capital projects 4,380 27,051 37,687 - 69,118
Transportation - 1,922,934 - - 1,922,934
Tree preservation 1,229 - - - 1,229
Assigned for:
Debt service - - - 217,623 217,623
Capital projects 17,500 - 185,672 - 203,172
Unassigned 4,153,041 B B B 4,153,041
Total Fund Balances 5,094,547 2,348,595 223,359 260,814 7,927,315
Total Liabilities and
Fund Balances $ 5985869 $ 2418353 $_ 223359 $ 280,859 $__ 8,908,440

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2020

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the
Statement of Net Position (Page 15) are Different Because:

Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds (Page 17) $ 7,927,315

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported

in the funds.
Capital assets $ 80,457,855
Accumulated depreciation (20,749,800) 59,708,055

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds:

Long-term debt $ (9,659,946)

Accrued interest payable (122,397)

Deferred charge on refunding (amortized as interest expense) 28,794 (9,753,549)
Net Position of Governmental Activities (Page 15) $ 57,881,821

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

Revenues
Ad valorem taxes
Utility taxes
Franchise fees
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General government
Public safety:
Law enforcement
Fire control and rescue
services
Total public safety

Community services and
development
Parks and recreation
Transportation
Emergency services
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

Other Financing Sources
(Uses)

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)
Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning
of Year

Fund Balances - End of Year $ 5,094,547 $

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

Capital Nonmajor Total
General Transportation Projects Governmental  Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 6,633543 $ - - $ - 6,633,543
1,221,282 - - - 1,221,282
668,534 - - - 668,534
1,696,926 - - - 1,696,926
604,503 719,891 - - 1,324,394
2,155,792 - - - 2,155,792
306,019 - - - 306,019
76,052 26,330 2,675 1,296 106,353
152,734 - - 5,763 158,497
13,515,385 746,221 2,675 7,059 14,271,340
2,252,910 - - - 2,252,910
2,899,711 - - - 2,899,711
3,584,881 - - 200,456 3,785,337
6,484,592 - - 200,456 6,685,048
1,731,518 - - - 1,731,518
407,633 - - - 407,633
- 467,192 - - 467,192
12,094 - - - 12,094
64,507 843,049 72,788 - 980,344
- - - 588,432 588,432
- - - 317,535 317,535
10,953,254 1,310,241 72,788 1,106,423 13,442,706
2,562,131 (564,020) (70,113) (1,099,364) 828,634
251,160 1,322,404 72,000 1,223,804 2,869,368
(2,618,208) - - (29,868) (2,648,076)
(2,367,048) 1,322,404 72,000 1,193,936 221,292
195,083 758,384 1,887 94,572 1,049,926
4,899,464 1,590,211 221,472 166,242 6,877,389
2348595 $ 223359 $ 260,814 $ 7,927,315
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Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the
Statement of Activities (Page 16) are Different Because:

Net changes in fund balance - total governmental funds (Page 19)

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
depreciated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense:

Expenditures for capital outlay $ 980,344
Less: current year provision for depreciation expense (1,181,890)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also,
governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums,
discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these
amounts (other than direct issuance costs) are deferred and amortized
in the statement of activities.

This detail of the difference is as follows:

Repayment of principal
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as

expenditures in the governmental funds:

Amortization of deferred amount on refunding
Change in accrued interest payable

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (Page 16)

$

$

1,049,926

(201,546)

588,432

(5,758)
1,851

1,432,905

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Fund
September 30, 2020

Solid
Waste Fund

Assets
Current Assets

Cash $ 838,466

Accounts receivable 9,000

Intergovernmental receivables 29,465
Total Assets 876,931
Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 117,609
Total Liabilities 117,609
Net Position

Unrestricted 759,322
Total Net Position $ 759,322

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
21



Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position - Proprietary Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

Solid
Waste Fund

Operating Revenues

Charges for services $ 1,714,527

Miscellaneous 65
Total Operating Revenues 1,714,592
Operating Expenses

Contractual services 1,312,622

Recycling 105,862

Emergency services 323

Other 403
Total Operating Expenses 1,419,210
Operating Income 295,382
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Intergovernmental, non-capital grants 70,612

Investment income 20,098

Emergency line of credit interest expense (16,267)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 74,443
Income Before Transfers 369,825
Transfers:

Transfers in 29,868

Transfers out (251,160)

Total net transfers (221,292)
Change in Net Position 148,533
Net Position - Beginning of Year 610,789
Net Position - End of Year $ 759,322

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

Solid
Waste Fund
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers and users $ 1,726,592
Cash paid to suppliers (1,414,402)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 312,190
Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities
Proceeds from grants, non-capital 2,096,253
Payment on emergency line of credit (1,761,698)
Emergency line of credit interest paid (30,042)
Transfers out (251,160)
Transfers in 29,868
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Non-Capital Financing Activities 83,221
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received 20,098
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 415,509
Cash - Beginning 422,957
Cash - Ending $ 838,466
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
Operating income $ 295,382
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (Increase) in accounts receivable 12,000
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 4,808
Total adjustments 16,808
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 312,190

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This summary of the Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida’s (the Town) significant
accounting policies is presented to assist the reader in interpreting the basic financial
statements. The policies are considered essential and should be read in conjunction with the
basic financial statements.

The Town is an instrumentality of the State of Florida, incorporated in accordance with House
Bill No. 1777 on June 6, 2000, to carry on a centralized government. The Town Council,
which is comprised of four elected Council members and the elected Mayor, is responsible
for legislative and fiscal control of the Town. The Town is governed under a
Council/Administrator form of government. A Town Administrator is appointed by the
Council and is responsible for administrative and fiscal control of the resources of the Town
maintained in the funds.

The accounting policies of the Town conform to accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more
significant of the Town’s accounting policies are described below.

A. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The accompanying financial statements present the Town and its component unit, the
Southwest Ranches Volunteer Fire-Rescue, Inc. (the Department).

The Department became a blended component unit of the Town of Southwest Ranches on
January 28, 2010 when the members of the Town Council became the Board of Directors of
the Department. The Department is a legally separate, tax-exempt, 501(c)(4) organization
that provides for the protection of human and animal life and property against fire, disaster,
natural catastrophe or other calamity within the Town limits of Southwest Ranches. The
Town is financially responsible (benefit/burden) and has operational responsibility for the
Department. There are no separately issued financial statements for this component unit.

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) report information on all the activities of the Town and its component
unit. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other nonexchange transactions, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges to external customers for
support.
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Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported
as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and the proprietary fund.
Major individual governmental funds and the major individual enterprise fund are reported
as separate columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining governmental funds are
aggregated and reported as nonmajor governmental funds.

C. MEASUREMENT Focus, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability
is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities
of the current period. For this purpose, the Town considers revenues to be available if they
are collected within 60 days from the end of the -current fiscal vyear.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise fees, utility taxes, charges for services, intergovernmental revenues
and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be measurable and
available and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Revenues for
expenditure driven grants are recognized when the qualifying expenditures are incurred, and
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. All other revenue items such
as fines and forfeitures and licenses and permits are considered to be measurable and
available when cash is received by the Town.

The reporting practices of the proprietary fund type closely parallel comparable commercial
financial reporting, which recognize revenue when earned and expenses when incurred (the
accrual basis) including, in the case of the enterprise fund, depreciation on its exhaustible
capital assets, if any. Earned, but unbilled service receivables, if any, would be accrued as
revenue in the enterprise fund.
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Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. MEASUREMENT Focus, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the Town’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those accounted for in another fund.

The Transportation Fund accounts for the receipt of the Town’s portion of the state
revenue sharing of the gasoline and local option gas taxes which are restricted for
transportation related expenditures.

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the capital projects of the Town which
have received the approval of the Town Council. Transfers from the general and other
funds are made to this fund to cover such expenditures.

The Town reports the following major proprietary fund:

The Solid Waste Fund (an enterprise fund) accounts for the operation of the Town’s solid
waste collection, disposal, and recycling services.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments in lieu of taxes and
other charges between the Town’s solid waste functions and various other functions of the
Town, if applicable. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program
revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital
grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. The general revenues include
all taxes whose purpose has not been restricted to a specific program.

Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases
(e.g., expenses) in net position. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and
expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary
fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the proprietary fund
are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the proprietary fund
include the costs of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital
assets, as applicable. All revenues and expenses that do not meet this definition are reported
as non-operating revenues or expenses.
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Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
D. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The Town utilizes a pooled cash account for cash of all Town funds other than those that are
required to be physically segregated. The pooled cash account concept allows each
participating fund to benefit from the economies of scale and improved yield which are
inherent to a larger investment pool. Formal accounting records detail the individual equities
of the participating funds. The pooled cash system utilizes a single checking account for
Town receipts and all disbursements including payroll.

Investments are in the Florida PRIME administered by the State Board of Administration.
The Town’s investments in the Florida PRIME are stated at amortized cost.

E. PREPAID ITEMS

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. Prepaid
items of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when
purchased.

F. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include land, construction in progress, infrastructure assets,
improvements other than buildings, buildings and building improvements, and furniture and
equipment are reported in the applicable governmental columns in the government-wide
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $1,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value on the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated

useful lives:
Assets Years
Infrastructure 10-40
Improvements other than buildings 10-50
Buildings and building improvements 10-50
Furniture and equipment 3-30
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Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
G. IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Town records impairment losses on long-lived assets used in operations when events and
circumstances indicate the assets might be impaired. No impairment losses have been
recorded.

H. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund type in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities
in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund type
statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts, if applicable, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method, which approximates the
effective interest method. Bond issue costs are expensed at issuance. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable premiums and discounts.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize debt premiums and
discounts, as well as debt issuance costs, in the year of issuance. The face amount of debt
issued is reported as another financing source. Premiums received on debt issuance are
reported as another financing source while discounts on debt issuances are reported as another
financing use. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received,
and principal payments, are reported as debt service expenditures.

|. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/ INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure)
until then. The Town only has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is the
deferred charge on refunding reported in the government-wide statement of net position. A
deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded
debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of
the life of the refunded or refunding debt.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows
of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so
will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Town has no
amounts reported in this category in the current year.

J. UNEARNED REVENUE

Unearned revenue represents increases in assets prior to the eligibility criteria being met for
recognition of revenue.
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Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
K. FUND BALANCE

The Town follows the criteria for classifying governmental fund balances into specifically
defined classifications. Classifications are hierarchical and are based primarily on the extent
to which the Town is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts
in the funds may be spent. The Town’s accounting and financial policies are used to interpret
the nature and/or requirements of the funds and their corresponding classification of
nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned.

The following are the fund balance classifications:

Nonspendable fund balance. Nonspendable fund balances are amounts that are (a) not in
spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted fund balance. Restricted fund balances are amounts that can be spent only for
specific purposes stipulated by (a) external resource providers such as creditors (by debt
covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b)
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance. These amounts can only be used for the specific purposes
determined by a formal action (ordinance or resolution) of the Town Council, the Town’s
highest level of decision-making authority. Ordinances and resolutions constitute the most
binding constraints and are deemed equally binding and enforceable within the Town.
Commitments may be changed or lifted only by the Town Council taking the same formal
action (ordinance or resolution) that imposed the constraint originally. Resources
accumulated pursuant to stabilization arrangements sometimes are reported in this
category.

Assigned fund balance. Assigned fund balances are amounts that are constrained by the
Town’s intent to be used for specific purposes but are neither restricted nor committed.
Intent is established by the Town Administrator and Town Financial Administrator who
have the discretionary authority as charter officers of the Town and to which the Council
has delegated the authority to assign, modify or rescind amounts to be used for specific
purposes. There is no formal policy which has been established by Council delegating this
authority. This balance includes (a) all remaining amounts that are reported in
governmental funds (other than the General Fund) that are not classified as nonspendable,
restricted, or committed, and (b) amounts in the General Fund that are intended to be used
for a specific purpose. Specific amounts that are not restricted or committed in a special
revenue or capital projects fund are assigned for the purposes in accordance with the nature
of their fund type. Assignment within the General Fund conveys that the intended use of
those amounts is for a specific purpose that is narrower than the general purposes of the
Town itself.

Unassigned fund balance. This fund balance is the residual classification for the General
Fund. It is also used to report negative fund balances in other governmental funds.
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Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
L. NETPOSITION

Net position is the result of assets and deferred outflows of resources less liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources. The net position of the government-wide and proprietary funds
is categorized as net investment in capital assets, reduced by depreciation and any outstanding
debt incurred to acquire, construct and improve those assets and deferred inflows and
outflows of resources related to debt, and excluding unexpended proceeds.

Restricted net position is that portion of net position that has been restricted for general use
by external parties (creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other
governments) or imposed by law through constitutional provisions enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net position consists of the net position that does not meet the definition of either
of the other two components.

M. FLow ASSUMPTIONS

Net Position Flow Assumption

Sometimes the Town will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and
unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted - net position
and unrestricted — net position in the government-wide financial statements, a flow
assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied.
It is the Town’s policy to consider restricted — net position to have been depleted before
unrestricted — net position is applied.

Fund Balance Flow Assumption

Sometimes the Town will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and
unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In
order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned
fund balance in the financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in
which the resources are considered to be applied. Itis the Town’s policy to consider restricted
fund balance to have been depleted before using any other components of unrestricted fund
balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same
purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance.
Unassigned fund balance is applied last.

N. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred inflows/outflows, liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results may differ from management’s estimates.
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Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

NOTE 2 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
DEPOSITS

The Town maintains a cash pool that is available for use by all funds. In addition to insurance
provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), all deposits are held in
banking institutions approved by the State of Florida, State Treasurer to hold public funds.
Under the Florida Statutes Chapter 280, Florida Security for Public Deposits Act, the State
Treasurer requires all qualified public depositories to deposit with the Treasurer or banking
institution eligible collateral of the depository. In the event of a failure of a qualified public
depository, the remaining public depositories would be responsible for covering any resulting
losses. Since the Town uses only authorized public depositories, all funds deposited with
financial institutions are FDIC insured and/or are fully collateralized and treated as insured.

INVESTMENTS

The Town is authorized to invest in direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury, Securities and
Exchange Commission registered money market funds with the highest credit quality rating
from a nationally recognized rating agency, and the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust
Fund, or any other intergovernmental investment pool authorized by Florida Statutes,
including the Florida PRIME administered by the State Board of Administration. The
investment policy defined in the statutes attempts to promote, through state assistance, the
maximization of net interest earnings on invested surplus funds of local units of governments
while limiting the risk to which the funds are exposed.

Florida PRIME is governed by Chapter 19-7 of the Florida Administrative Code and Chapters
215 and 218 of the Florida Statutes. These rules provide guidance and establish the policies
and general operating procedures for the administration of the Florida PRIME. Florida
PRIME invests in a pool of investments whereby the Town owns a share of the respective
pool, not the underlying securities. GASB issued Statement No. 79, Certain External
Investment Pools and Pool Participants establishing criteria for an external investment pool
to qualify to report at amortized cost. Florida PRIME is reported at amortized cost.

The investments in the Florida PRIME are not insured by FDIC or any other governmental
agency.

The Town had the following investments as of September 30, 2020:

Weighted
Average
Value Maturity
Investments
Florida PRIME $ 1,401,660 48 days

INTEREST RATE RISK
The Town does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a

means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates nor
do they have any investments that are subject to interest rate risk.
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Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

NOTE 2 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
CREDIT RISK

The Town does not have a written investment policy and, therefore, follows Florida Statute
218.415(17). The Town invests surplus funds in the State Board of Administration
Investment Pool. The Florida PRIME is rated by Standard and Poor’s. The current rating is
AAAM,

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Disclosure is required when the percentage of investments is 5% or more of total
investments. At September 30, 2020, the Town only invests in an external investment pool,
the Florida PRIME.

INVESTMENT POOLS AND POOL PARTICIPANTS

With regard to redemption dates, Chapter 218.409(8) (a), Florida Statutes, states, “The
principal, and any part thereof, of each account constituting the trust fund is subject to
payment at any time from the moneys in the trust fund. However, the Executive Director
may, in good faith, on the occurrence of an event that has a material impact on liquidity or
operations of the trust fund, for 48 hours limit contributions to or withdrawals from the trust
fund to ensure that the Board can invest moneys entrusted to it in exercising its fiduciary
responsibility. Such action must be immediately disclosed to all participants, the Trustees,
the Joint Legislative Auditing Committee, and the Investment Advisory Council. The
Trustees shall convene an emergency meeting as soon as practicable from the time the
Executive Director has instituted such measures and review the necessity of those measures.
If the Trustees are unable to convene an emergency meeting before the expiration of the 48-
hour moratorium on contributions and withdrawals, the Executive Director may extend the
moratorium until the Trustees are able to meet to review the necessity for the moratorium. If
the Trustees agree with such measures, the Trustees shall vote to continue the measures for
up to an additional 15 days. The Trustees must convene and vote to continue any such
measures before the expiration of the time limit set, but in no case may the time limit set by
the Trustees exceed 15 days.”

With regard to liquidity fees, Florida Statute 218.409(4) provides authority for the SBA to
impose penalties for early withdrawal, subject to disclosure in the enroliment materials of the
amount and purpose of such fees. At present, no such disclosure has been made.

As of September 30, 2020, there were no redemption fees or maximum transaction amounts,

or any other requirements that serve to limit a participant’s daily access to 100 percent of
their account value.
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NOTE 3 — PROPERTY TAXES

Property values are assessed as of January 1 of each year, at which time taxes become an
enforceable lien on property. Tax bills are mailed for the Town by Broward County on or
about October 1 of each year and are payable with discounts of up to 4% offered for early
payment. Taxes become delinquent on April 1 of the year following the year of assessment
and state law provides for enforcement of collection of property taxes by seizure of the
personal property or by the sale of interest-bearing tax certificates to satisfy unpaid property
taxes. Assessed values are established by the Broward County Property Appraiser. In
November 1992, a Florida constitutional amendment was approved by the voters which
provides for limiting the increases in homestead property valuations for ad valorem tax
purposes to a maximum of 3% annually and also provides for reassessment of market values
upon changes in ownership. The County bills and collects all property taxes and remits them
to the Town. Procedures for the collection of delinquent taxes by Broward County are
provided for in the Laws of Florida. There were no material delinquent property taxes at
September 30, 2020.

State statutes permit municipalities to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 10 mills ($10 per
$1,000 of assessed taxable valuation). The tax levy of the Town is established by the Town
Council and the Broward County Property Appraiser, who incorporates the Town’s millage
into the total tax levy, which includes the County, County School Board and other agencies
tax requirements. The millage rate assessed by the Town for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2020 was 4.6564 mills (operating millage was 4.2125 and TSDOR millage 0.4439)

NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of September 30, 2020 for the Town’s funds are as follows:

Taxes and
Fees
General Fund $ 569,660
Solid Waste Fund 9,000
Total Receivables $ 578,660

NOTE 5 — INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers during fiscal year ended September 30, 2020 are as follows:

Transfers In Transfers Out
General Fund $ 251,160 $ 2,618,208
Transportation Fund 1,322,404 -
Capital Projects Fund 72,000 -
Volunteer Fire Department Fund 195,013 -
Debt Service Fund 1,028,791 29,868
Solid Waste Fund 29,868 251,160
Total Interfund Transfers $ 2,899,236 $ 2,899,236
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General Fund Transfers In consisted of $251,160 from the Town’s Solid Waste Fund
providing an annual subsidy to the General Fund for administrative, finance and contractual
compliance management and legal expenses, while $29,868 from the Debt Service Fund to

the Solid Waste Fund relates to the emergency line of credit interest.

General Fund Transfers Out consisted of $1,322,404 to the Transportation Fund to fund
capital projects including the Transportation and Surface Drainage On-Going Rehabilitation
(TSDOR) and operating needs; $72,000 to the Capital Projects Fund to primarily fund capital
projects pertaining to the Town Public Safety Modular complex and infrastructure at Frontier
Trail Park; $195,013 to the Volunteer Fire Department Fund to fund volunteer fire operations;
and $1,028,791 to the Debt Service Fund as debt service principal and interest payments
become due in accordance with debt service arrangements.

NOTE 6 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020 was as follows:

Balance Balance
October 1, September 30,
2019 Increases Decreases Transfers 2020
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land $ 42,341,811 ¢ - $ - - $ 42,341,811
Construction in progress 1,786,806 342,854 - (792,192) 1,337,468
Total capital assets,
not being depreciated 44,128,617 342,854 - (792,192) 43,679,279
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure 24,532,754 532,200 - 168,858 25,233,812
Improvements other than buildings 5,278,971 61,325 - 623,334 5,963,630
Buildings and building improvements 3,653,649 5,818 - - 3,659,467
Furniture and equipment 1,883,520 38,147 - - 1,921,667
Total capital assets
being depreciated 35,348,894 637,490 - 792,192 36,778,576
Total capital assets 79,477,511 980,344 - - 80,457,855
Less: accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure 14,381,178 709,454 - - 15,090,632
Improvements other than buildings 3,522,442 251,135 - - 3,773,577
Buildings and building improvements 422,498 76,415 - - 498,913
Furniture and equipment 1,241,792 144,886 - - 1,386,678
Total accumulated
depreciation 19,567,910 1,181,890 - - 20,749,800
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 15,780,984 (544,400) 792,192 16,028,776
Governmental activities
Capital assets, net $ 59,909,601 § (201,546) § - - S 59,708,055
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NOTE 6 — CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Town as follows:

General Government $ 91,206
Public Safety 99,278
Parks and Recreation 293,101
Transportation 698,305
Total Depreciation - Governmental Activities $ 1,181,890

NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities of the Town for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2020.

Balance Balance Due
October 1, September 30, Within
2019 Additions Reductions 2020 One Year
Governmental Activities:
Notes from Direct Borrowing
and Private Placements:
Note Payable Series 2013 S 1,525,400 S - S (200,500) S 1,324,900 S 207,100
Note Payable Series 2011 623,229 - (272,280) 350,949 279,790
Note Payable Series 2016 7,750,000 - - 7,750,000 -
Rosenbauer Payable 110,761 - (26,650) 84,111 27,332
Loan Payable (Centennial/CBB) 238,988 - (89,002) 149,986 92,778
Total Governmental Activities $ 10,248,378 ¢ - $ (588,432) § 9,659,946 § 607,000
Balance Balance Due
October 1, September 30, Within
2019 Additions Reductions 2020 One Year
Business-type Activities:
Notes from Direct Borrowing
and Private Placements:
Emergency LOC Series 2018 $ 1,761,698 ¢ - $ (1,761,698) ¢ - S -
Total Business-type Activities $ 1,761,698 ¢ - $ (1,761,698) ¢ - S -

REVENUE REFUNDING NOTE, SERIES 2013

On June 1, 2013 the Town entered in to a $2,659,800 note with a financial institution for the
purpose of refunding a portion of the Town’s Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue Bonds,
Series 2001A and to finance the cost of certain capital projects. The note requires annual
payments of principal and semi-annual payments of interest beginning November 1, 2013 and
matures on November 1, 2025. The note bears interest on the outstanding principal amount
thereof at a rate of 2.85% calculated on the basis of twelve 30-day months and a 360-day year.
As security for loan repayment, the Town covenants and agrees to appropriate in its annual
budget amounts of non-ad valorem revenues sufficient to satisfy its annual debt service
requirements under the loan agreement.
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NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

The annual requirements to pay principal and interest on this obligation as of September 30,
2020 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

September 30, Principal Interest Total
2021 S 207,100 S 29,191 S 236,291
2022 213,300 24,167 237,467
2023 218,900 19,002 237,902
2024 224,000 14,468 238,468
2025 228,700 6,369 235,069
2026 232,900 6,254 239,154
Total S 1,324,900 S 99,451 S 1,424,351

REVENUE REFUNDING NOTE, SERIES 2011

On December 1, 2011 the Town entered in to a $2,500,000 note with a financial institution
for the purpose of refunding the Town’s pooled commercial paper loan with the Florida Local
Government Finance Commission (FLGFC). The note requires quarterly payments of
principal and interest beginning March 1, 2012 and matures on December 1, 2021. The note
bears interest on the outstanding principal amount thereof at a fixed rate of 2.73% per annum
calculated on a 30/360-day count basis. The Town has pledged non-ad valorem revenues to
secure payment of the principal and interest of the note.

The annual requirements to pay principal and interest on this obligation as of September 30,
2020 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

September 30, Principal Interest Total
2021 S 279,790 S 6,733 S 286,524
2022 71,159 485 71,644
Total S 350,949 S 7,218 S 358,168

IMPROVEMENT REVENUE NOTE, SERIES 2016

On March 31, 2016, the Town entered in to a $7,750,000 note with a financial institution for
the acquisition of 24.4373 acres of vacant land. The note requires semi-annual payments of
interest beginning November 1, 2016 and semi-annual payments of principal beginning
November 1, 2021. The note bears interest at a rate of 3.25% annually and matures on March
31, 2036, unless the financial institution imposes a call option 90 days prior to May 1, 2031.

36



Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

The annual requirements to pay principal and interest on this obligation as of September 30,
2020 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

September 30, Principal Interest Total
2021 S - S 251,875 S 251,875
2022 516,666 247,677 764,343
2023 516,666 230,885 747,551
2024 516,666 214,094 730,760
2025 516,666 197,302 713,968

2026-2030 2,583,330 734,635 3,317,965
2031-2035 2,583,340 314,844 2,898,184
2036 516,666 12,594 529,260
Total S 7,750,000 S 2,203,906 S 9,953,906

The Series 2013, 2011 and 2016 arrangements discussed previously include other financial
provisions as follows: 1) a 6% late charge on overdue payments in excess of fifteen days; 2)
events of defaults such as violation of covenants, payment defaults, bankruptcy, insolvency,
and uncured final non-appealable judgements may declare any unpaid principal and interest
(acceleration of maturity) due immediately and bearing a default rate equal to the interest rate
on the Note at the time of such default plus an additional spread ranging from 4% to 6% but
never to exceed the maximum rate permitted by law; and 3) an anti-dilution test of 1.30X and
1.50X as defined in the respective debt agreements — See the Debt Service Anti-Dilution
Coverage table in the Statistical Section of this report.

ROSENBAUER PAYABLE

On July 15, 2015, the Town entered into a financing arrangement for the acquisition of a
Rosenbauer Pumper Apparatus for the VVolunteer Fire Department in the amount of $206,500.
The loan calls for annual interest and principal payments at a fixed rate of 2.56% and the loan
matures on June 11, 2023.

The agreement provides that the lender is listed as the lienholder on the subject equipment, to
the extent allowed by law. The Town is required to make bona-fide best efforts to include all
annual required payments in its annual budget. If the Town fails to appropriate funding to meet
the required payments, the equipment must be returned to the lender, at the expense of the
Town, and the agreement shall then terminate upon the last day of the fiscal year for which
funds were appropriated.

The annual requirements to pay principal and interest on this obligation as of September 30,
2020 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

September 30, Principal Interest Total
2021 S 27,332 S 2,153 S 29,485
2022 28,032 1,454 29,486
2023 28,747 736 29,483
Total S 84,111 S 4,343 S 88,454
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NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

LOAN PAYABLE

On April 7, 2010, the Town originally entered into a line of credit agreement with a financial
institution in an amount not to exceed $2,000,000 for the purpose of financing road
improvements and drainage projects in the Town. The loan called for monthly interest
payments at 2.75% during the draw period. The principal amount outstanding at the end of the
draw period shall be payable monthly, beginning May 7, 2012 in equal payments of principal
and interest at 3.95% through April 7, 2022. The Town covenants to budget and appropriate
in its annual budget from legally available non-ad valorem revenues in each fiscal year,
sufficient moneys to pay the principal and interest on the loan.

In the event the Town fails to pay principal and interest when due on the loan or any other loan
or obligation for the repayment of money; declare bankruptcy or insolvency; fails to correct
any covenants, conditions or arrangements of this note and such default continues for 30 days
after written notice requiring to be remedied; the holder of the note may proceed to protect and
enforce its rights as allowed by law.

The annual requirements to pay principal and interest on this obligation as of September 30,
2020 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

September 30, Principal Interest Total
2021 S 92,778 S 4,190 S 96,968
2022 57,208 730 57,938
Total S 149,986 S 4,920 S 154,906

EMERGENCY LINE OF CREDIT - 2018

On May 23, 2018, the Town entered into a revolving line of credit agreement with a financial
institution in an amount not to exceed $10,000,000 for the purpose of expenditures for
extraordinary, nonrecurring items the Town desires or needs to undertake subsequent to and as
a result of a natural, technological or civil emergencies. The line of credit bears a variable
interest rate calculated at 80.25% of the prime rate less 125 basis points (3.21% as of September
30, 2019). Payments of accrued interest are due on the first day of each February, May, August
and November, beginning on November 1, 2018, based on the amount drawn and repaid by the
Town from time to time. The outstanding principal of this Line of Credit and any accrued and
unpaid interest is payable on the maturity date unless renewed. The maturity date of the line of
credit is May 23, 2023. The Town had no outstanding balance and available balance was
$ 10,000,000 at September 30, 2020.

The Town covenants to budget from legally available non-ad valorem revenues in each fiscal
year sufficient funds to pay any principal and interest outstanding on the note. Any outstanding
balance on the line of credit is secured by an irrevocable lien on revenues from FEMA and
State proceeds, which shall be used to pay down the outstanding balance within 30 days of
receipt. This note may be extended by the lender, at its sole discretion, for additional periods,
each to not exceed five years. At such time, the Town is responsible for an extension fee of
$ 25,000 plus legal fees associated with the renewal. The lender, at its sole discretion, shall
have the option to require the Town to prepay any outstanding amount on the loan in full on
November 22, 2021 (the call date).
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NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

In addition, this arrangement includes other financial provisions as follows: 1) a 6% late charge
on overdue payments in excess of fifteen days; and 2) events of defaults such as violation of
covenants, payment defaults, bankruptcy, insolvency, and certain uncured final non-appealable
judgements may declare any unpaid principal and interest (acceleration of maturity) due
immediately and bearing a default rate equal to prime rate plus 6% but never to exceed the
maximum rate permitted by law.

NOTE 8 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets, errors and omissions and natural disasters for which the Town carries
commercial insurance. There were no reductions in insurance coverage from coverage
requirements in the prior year. Settled claims did not exceed coverage requirements for each
of the past three years.

NOTE 9 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES

In June 2017, the Town entered into an agreement with the Town of Davie for public safety
services, including emergency medical, fire protection, fire and life safety, and police service
effective October 1, 2017 through September 30, 2022. The Town paid approximately
$6,370,000 under this agreement for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020.

AGREEMENT FOR PLANS REVIEW AND BUILDING INSPECTION SERVICES

In 2012, the Town entered a service agreement through March 2015 for plan review and
building inspection services. The agreement was extended on April 12, 2018 for thirty-six
months, with extensions to be approved by the Town and contractor. The amount of
compensation is based on rates and schedules set forth in the agreement with a maximum
percentage of 75% of actual revenue received by the Town. For the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2020, the Town paid approximately $1,032,000 for these services.

AGREEMENT FOR PLANNING SERVICES

In 2014, the Town entered into a renegotiated agreement with a consultant to provide
planning, zoning and land use services on an hourly rate fee structure. This agreement, which
was set to expire September 30, 2017, was extended through September 30, 2020. and is
renewable upon the consent of both parties. The agreement was renewed to September 30,
2023. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020, the Town paid approximately $153,000
for these services.
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NOTE 9 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)
AGREEMENT FOR CODE COMPLIANCE AND ZONING SERVICES

The Town entered into a service agreement with a provider for the provision of code
compliance and zoning, including services, as the Code Compliance Official. This agreement
is in effect through September 2022. Either party may terminate this agreement upon
providing 90 days written notice. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020, the Town
paid approximately $297,000 for code compliance and zoning services.

LITIGATION

From time to time, the Town is a defendant in various suits and claims incidental to its
operations. Although the outcome of such litigation is not presently determinable, it is the
opinion of the Town attorney and Town management that resolution of such matters, if any,
will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position and results of operations of
the Town.

GRANTS AND AWARDS

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a
liability of the Town. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the
grantor cannot be determined at this time although the Town expects such amounts, if any, would
not have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the Town.

NOTE 10 — DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

All regular full-time employees are eligible to be covered by the Town’s 401(a) Plan (the Plan),
a defined contribution pension plan, administered by an independent agent, ICMA Retirement
Corporation, and authorized by resolution effective March 27, 2014. The Town’s policy is to
fund the annual pension costs in each department during the annual budget process.

Under the Plan, the Town matches, and therefore contributes, up to 5% or 10% (as a percentage
of employees’ regular wages) of the employees’ annual elective contribution to an ICMA 457
Plan (see Note 11) for both General and Management personnel, respectively. Each personnel
group receives a 20% graduated vesting over various periods of time by completing one through
five years of full-time employment. Additionally, age 62, with 5 years of service, is the earliest
age that personnel may elect to receive retirement benefits upon separation of service.

Under the Plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the Plan plus investment
earnings. There was a total of 14 employees for both personnel groups participating under the
Plan throughout fiscal year 2020. The assets of the Plan are held in trust and are the sole property
of the participants; therefore, no balances or financial information is reported in the Town’s basic
financial statements. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020, the employer pension
expense was approximately $81,000.
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NOTE 11 — DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The Town offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Service (“IRS”) Code Section 457. The Plan, administered by the ICMA Retirement
Corporation, which is available to all Town employees, permits them to defer a portion of their
salaries until future years. Participation in the Plan is optional. The deferred compensation plan
is generally not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or the hardship
distribution criteria as defined in IRS Code Section 457. The assets of the Plan are held in trust
and are the sole property of the participants; therefore, no balances or financial information is
reported in the Town’s basic financial statements.

NOTE 12 — R1SKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak has caused disruption in international and U.S.
economies and markets. The coronavirus and fear of further spread has caused quarantines,
cancellation of events, and overall reduction in business and economic activity. On March 11,
2020, the World Health Organization designated the coronavirus outbreak as a pandemic.
Management and the Town Council continue to evaluate and monitor the potential adverse effect
that this event may have on the City’s financial position, operations and cash flows. The full
impact of COVID-19 is unknown at this time and cannot be reasonably estimated as these events
are still developing.

NOTE 13 — SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On October 8th, 2020, the Town Council of Southwest Ranches tentatively entered into a long-
term, public-private lease agreement for use of 24.3622 +/- vacant and unimproved town acreage,
if the tenant determines within a year that it is suitable for its purposes. The terms would allow
the development of the property through the financing, construction, operation, and maintenance
of two (2) uses that will serve a public purpose - a single source organic processing facility, with
the retail sale of the end products of such processing, and a vehicle parking and equipment storage
facility. The Town Council believes that entering into this long-term lease agreement is in the
best interest of the health, safety, and welfare of its residents. When operational, the financial
impact provides at a minimum, payment of the debt service on the property.

NOTE 14 — DATE OF MANAGEMENT REVIEW

The Town’s management has evaluated subsequent events through March 5, 2021, the date
which the financial statements were available for issuance.
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Required Supplementary Information

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

Revenues
Ad valorem taxes
Utility taxes
Franchise fees
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General government

Public safety:
Law enforcement
Fire control

Total public safety

Community services and development
Parks and recreation
Emergency services

Capital outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Change in Fund Balance

Appropriated Beginning Fund Balance $

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
6,549,694 $ 6,549,694 $ 6,633,543 $ 83,849
1,201,321 1,201,321 1,221,282 19,961
668,079 668,079 668,534 455
843,734 1,669,967 1,696,926 26,959
634,683 744,500 604,503 (139,997)
2,130,249 2,130,249 2,155,792 25,543
243,600 335,228 306,019 (29,209)
92,784 92,784 76,052 (16,732)
107,689 143,014 152,734 9,720
12,471,833 13,534,836 13,515,385 (19,451)
2,485,463 2,519,987 2,252,910 267,077
2,919,093 2,919,093 2,899,711 19,382
3,607,618 3,604,457 3,584,881 19,576
6,526,711 6,523,550 6,484,592 38,958
1,132,978 1,767,604 1,731,518 36,086
415,377 421,077 407,633 13,444
592 592 12,094 (11,502)
79,308 230,469 64,507 165,962
10,640,429 11,463,279 10,953,254 510,025
1,831,404 2,071,557 2,562,131 490,574

251,160 251,160 251,160 -
(2,155,564) (2,615,701) (2,618,208) (2,507)
(1,904,404) (2,364,541) (2,367,048) (2,507)
(73,000) $ (292,984) $ 195083 $ 488,067

73,000 $ 292,984

42



Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Transportation Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

Revenues
Intergovernmental
Investment income

Total Revenues
Expenditures
Current:
Transportation

Capital outlay

Total Expenditures

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

$ 547943 $ 1316943 $ 719891 $ (597,052)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

over Expenditures

5,000 5,000 26,330 21,330
552,943 1,321,943 746,221 (575,722)
489,734 503,924 467,192 36,732

1618591 3,245,421 843,049 2,402,372
2,108,325 3,749,345 1,310,241 2,439,104
(1555,382)  (2,427,402)  (564,020) 1,863,382

Other Financing Sources

Transfers in

862,267 1,322,404 1,322,404 -

Total Other Financing Sources 862,267 1,322,404 1,322,404 -

Change in Fund Balance $ (693,115) $(1,104,998) $ 758,384 $ 1,863,382

Appropriated Beginning Fund Balance $ 693,115 $ 1,104,998
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The Town follows the procedures below in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
accompanying financial statements.

NOTE 1 - BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

a. Prior to September 1, the Town Administrator submits to the Town Council a proposed
operating budget for the ensuing fiscal year, commencing October 1. The operating
budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of funding them.

b. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.
c. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

d. Upon request of the Town Administrator or Town Financial Administrator, the Town
Council, in the form of a resolution, may amend the budget, make changes between funds
or from a reserve, and increase or decrease a fund. The Town Administrator or Town
Financial Administrator may make changes within a department. Therefore, the legal
level of control is at the department level. At the close of each fiscal year, the
unencumbered balance of each appropriation reverts to the fund from which it was
appropriated and is subject to future appropriations.

e. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the General Fund, the Transportation Fund,
the Capital Projects Fund and the Debt Service Fund on a basis consistent with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

f. The reported budgetary data represents the final approved budgets after amendments

(supplemental appropriations) adopted by the Town Council. The Volunteer Fire
Department Fund’s budget is not legally adopted by the Town Council.
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Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
September 30, 2020

Total
Volunteer Debt Nonmajor
Fire Service Governmental
Department Fund Funds
Assets

Cash $ 55,219 $ 217,623 $ 272,842

Due from other funds 3,850 - 3,850

Prepaid items 4,167 - 4,167
Total Assets $ 63,236 $ 217,623 $ 280,859
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 20,045 $ - $ 20,045
Total Liabilities 20,045 - 20,045
Fund Balances

Non-spendable:

Prepaid items 4,167 - 4,167

Restricted for:

Fire control and rescue services 39,024 - 39,024

Assigned for:

Debt service - 217,623 217,623
Total Fund Balances 43,191 217,623 260,814
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 63,236 $ 217,623 $ 280,859
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

Revenues
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues
Expenditures
Current:
Fire and rescue services
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending
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Total
Volunteer Debt Nonmajor
Fire Service Governmental
Department Fund Funds
772 $ 524 1,296
5,763 - 5,763
6,535 524 7,059
200,456 - 200,456
- 588,432 588,432
- 317,535 317,535
200,456 905,967 1,106,423
(193,921) (905,443) (1,099,364)
195,013 1,028,791 1,223,804
- (29,868) (29,868)
195,013 998,923 1,193,936
1,092 93,480 94,572
42,099 124,143 166,242
43,191 $ 217,623 260,814




Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Debt Service Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues
Investment income $ i $ i $ 524 $ 524
Total Revenues - - 524 524
Expenditures
Debt service:
Principal 588,621 588,621 588,432 189
Interest and fiscal charges 319,791 319,791 317,535 2,256
Total Expenditures 908,412 908,412 905,967 2,445
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures (908,412) (908,412) (905,443) 2,969
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 1,028,791 1,028,791 1,028,791 -
Transfers out (120,379) (120,379) (29,868) 90,511
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 908,412 908,412 998,923 90,511
Change in Fund Balance $ - $ - $ 93,480 $ 93,480
Appropriated Beginning Fund Balance $ - $ -
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Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Capital Projects Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues
Investment income $ - $ - $ 2675 $ 2,675
Intergovernmental 180,000 180,000 - (180,000)
Total Revenues 180,000 180,000 2,675 (177,325)
Expenditures
Capital outlay 275,039 348,265 72,788 275,477
Total Expenditures 275,039 348,265 72,788 275,477
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures (95,039) (168,265) (70,113) 98,152
Other Financing Sources
Transfers in 72,000 72,000 72,000 -
Total Other Financing Sources 72,000 72,000 72,000 -
Change in Fund Balance $ (23,039) $ (96,265) $ 1,887 $ 98,152

Appropriated Beginning Fund Balance $ 23,039 % 96,265

48






Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Introduction to Statistical Section (Unaudited)
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

This part of Town of Southwest Ranches' comprehensive annual financial report
presents detailed information as a context for understanding this year's financial
statements, note disclosures, and supplementary information. This information is
unaudited.

Contents

Financial Trends

These tables contain trend information that may assist the reader in assessing
the Town's currentfinancial performance by placing it in historical perspective.

Revenue Capacity

These tables contain information that may assist the reader in assessing
the Town's most significant local revenue source, the property taxes.

Debt Capacity

These tables contain information that may assist the reader in analyzing
the affordability of the Town's current levels of outstanding debt and the

Town's ability to issue debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These tables present demographic and economic information intended (1)

to assist users in understanding the socioeconomic environment within which
the Town operates and (2) to provide information that facilitates comparisons

of financial statement information over time and among towns.

Operating Information

These tables contain service and infrastructure indicators that can inform one's
understanding how the information in the Town's financial statements relates

to the services the Town provides and the activities it performs.

Data Source:

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these tables is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial report for the applicable year.

49-64

65-71

72-74

75-77

78-79



6v

"uodal [eroueuly jenuue aAIsuayaldwod sieak ajgeoljddy

:801N0S eleq

‘pajussaid s1eak [e 1oy ABOJOUILLIS) MBU U} PazIjiN pue £TOZ ‘0 Jaquiaidas papus Jeak [easty syl Bulinp €9 "ON UsWaIRIS gSVo paiuswajdwil UMo] ayL

'020z 104 d1wapued GT-PINOD PUB GTOZ 104 U0 dUBIIINH ‘8TOZ 40} BLII| SUBIILINH WoJy Buninsas saanypuadxa as1idwod saoinlas Aouabisws

G06'ZEY'T $ ¥82'889'T $ 2ev'9sL $ 092'220'T $ 608'GSS'T $ 6£0'60€'T $ 6.9'6eF $ PY8'E0E'T $ L¥6'88T $ 268'GTS $
166'€LL'6 £20'2TL'6 £v£'e88's 287'7ES's ¥58'220'8 var'2L9'L 28Y'610°L 9£T'€T6'9 TOT'8EL'9 ¥58'656'9
260'T2C 090'T¥T §9/'G2Z 127'S02 828'G8T ££8'89T 12€'€8T 260'7LT 10.'82T -
669'755'6 £96'5/5'6 8/5'259'8 §50'62E'8 920'2€8'L 129'€0G'L GGT'998'9 ¥v9'8L'9 007'609'9 ¥58'656'9
6.1'59T 80€'8YT 0£v'z 202'62T v6.'16 685'68 659'76 9€L'VET 79026 TT6'6ET
£G£90T 090'0LT G89'20T £58'8Y 0r9'02 099'6T 865'S Gel'IT 682°0€ 98.'6e
808'25L G98'0€8 087728 e1e'LLL Y16'LLL 0£6'TLL 8ev'vEL 167022 169'689 1€8°06.
¥£5'899 ¥8T'929 50029 896'€r9 650719 639'T29 695'9T9 66€'TLS 888'€65 2€5°029
282'122'T 916'002'T ¥99'882'T veLVET'T 209'922'T 02£'212'T Y8T'69T'T 9T9'LYT'T ¥29'260°T 760'6.0'T
£75'€€9'9 0€9'6¥5'9 ¥19'2v8'S G80'S61'S 1£0'90T'S £9Y'88L'Y LTL'SYT'y L19'9VT'y 8€€'S0T Y 00L'€0E'Y
(980'T1€'8) (6€2'820'8) (126'960'8) (zzz'eis's) (5v0'29%'9) (ST7'€9¢'9) (€08'619'9) (262'609'S) (¥ST'675'9) (296'cv1'9)
TY9'8TL'Y 9e8'v/2'Y 8v5'T60'Y £66'592'S 119'818'S BYT'8GH'e 612'222'c 296'6E1'S 117'228'C 6767692
902'095 €/T'/GT 056'05 £T0'€ve ZI7'679 ¥26'82¢ £62'19T ££0°28¢ ST0'T8T 29T'65
eYT'ZT v16'%2T 9TT'8S Zr8'8T 69'22 6Y0'€T £00'82 £€89'GE 16T'8Y 909'96
806'C 012'0T LT€'TT 16T°0T LY0'TT - - - - -
926'969'T 1G8'GYE'T 1S0'S/T'T 65665/ 22S'T2T'T 20£'5.6 129'700'T 692'G8T'T 269'5€9 1Y€'88L
85'ory'Z 829'9€9'Z 80T'96€'Z 286'€ET'C Zv6'€10'C v18'0vT'C 962'1€0'2 116'9€8'T £6'878'T LTT'ET9'T
- - - - - - - - 08T'60T LTL'VET
121'650°€T G/G'€0E'CT 697'881°2T GT2'8L°0T 299'682°0T ¥95°728'6 220'7v8'6 ¥52'6%0'6 T/S'T/E'6 T16'GET'6
Trr'TeE z€T'6ey 29T'e5e G/6'€8¢E 8€8'1€2 099'88T 9£9'01Z G19'6/2 969'662 809'852
60T vre'y LTS - - - - - - -
L67'59T'T 20T'ZET'T 9Y5'€5S 0£1'265 ST¥'206 T0S'TY9 218'19. 962'vL ovy'0eL €60'G2L
¥£2'00L 156899 166'8£9 2T7'959 118'229 €19'528 682281 v1€'16Y 6Y2'6TY 69€'0TE
8IS'TEL'T 11€TSY'T T1/2'852'T 1¥9'9€6 82€'020'T 950'658 T0€'22L 687'6TL 0S.'/88 158'96.
289'78L°9 9TS'LTF'9 695829 0SS'TLY'S §25'2LE'S 9/0'€9€'S ¥16'889'G GITTL6'Y GTG'9ET'S £66'€62'G
09.°€¥E'Z $ €ST'06T°C $ 88T'706'C $ T06'92.C $ 6EL'7.0C $ 809'er6'T $ 010'G88'T $ S0Z'.e8'T $ T126'.68'T $ T166'0SL'T $
0202 6102 810C 1102 9102 ST0C ¥102 €102 z10z 1102

RICIVE!

‘0€ Jaquwiardas papu3 Jes A [easi4 ay} Jo4

(paupneun) saNIANOY [eIUSLIUISADS) - UOIISOd 18N Ul sabuey)d
epLIo| ‘sayouey 1S9MUIN0S JO UMO |

(Bununoooe Jo siseq [eniade)
SIBAA |BISIH Ua] 1seT]

T
:S910N

uonisod 18N Ut aueyd

SJ9JsUBI | JO 19N 'SBNUBARY [eJ3UdD) [e10 ]
siaysued] 18N

SaNUaA3Y [eJaUaD) 2301

SNo3Ue||3dSIAl
sBuiules JuswWiIsaAUl pajoLIIsaIUN
SANUAA3I [BIUSLILIBAOBIB)UI PajoLIISaIuN
s1d182a1 $s046 U0 paseq sasy asIyouelH
soxe} AN
SaXE) WaIOJeA Py
1saxe |
:sanuanay [edausD

anuanay (asuadx3) 18N
sanuanay weaboid 2101

suonNqIIuo pue sjueld fended
suonngriuod pue sjuelh Bunelado
uo13ea1031 pue Syled
JusWdolansp pue SagIAISS AJuUnWWoD
Ayoges o1jand
JusWUIBA0B [eIaUsD)
1$921AI8S 10} Sabieyd
:sanuanay weaboad

sasuadx3 e101

safiseyo [easly pue 1salaiu|
. S891AI8s AouaBiswg
uorenodsuel |
UoI1eaId3l pue Syled
jJuswdojansp pue sadlAIas ANUNWIWOD
Ayages a1gnd
JUBWUIBAOB [esausD)
:sasuadxgy



0S

"Jiodal [e1ourULy [enuUe aAISUBYIdWO0d Sieak ajqealddy

:921N0S eleg

'020¢ 404 olwapued 6T-PIACD PUe GTOZ 10} UBLOQ SUBDLINH ‘BTOZ 04 BUWL| BUBILUNH WO} Bupinsas sainypuadxa 8sidwiod saojales Aoushiswg |

%0°00T %0°00T %0°00T %0°00T %0°00T %0°00T %0°00T %0°00T %0°00T %0°00T
%L'T %S'T %00 %9'T %C'T %C'T %v'T %0°¢ %S'T %0°¢C
%T'T %81 %1 %9°0 %E0 %E0 %10 %E0 %50 %0
%6°L %L'8 %S'6 %E'6 %66 %€E0T %L°0T %L'0T %01 %¥'TT
%0°L %T'L %L %L'L %8'L %E8 %06 %G8 %06 %68
%8¢T %SCT %EVT %8'vT %L'ST %297 %0°LT %0°LT %G'9T %G'9T
%769 %789 %G'L9 %099 %¢C'S9 %8'€9 %8'T9 %G'T9 %129 %8'T9
%0007 %0007 %0007 %0'00T %0°00T %0007 %0007 %0007 %0'00T %0007
%6'TT %LE %0'TT %S0T %0°LT %56 %0°S %T'TT %v'9 %C'C
%E0 %6°¢C %v'T %90 %9°0 %v'0 %60 %0'T %L'T %9°€
%10 %cC'0 %0 %E0 %E0 %00 %00 %00 %00 %00
%0°9€ %S'TE %L.'8¢ %E€C %t'6C %¢C'8¢ %T'TE %S'vE %S'¢e %E6¢
%8'TS %L'T9 %985 %€'99 %L'2S %6'T9 %0°€9 %'€S %G99 %665
%00 %00 %00 %00 %00 %00 %00 %00 %6°€ %0°'S
%0°00T %0°00T %0°00T %0°00T %0°00T %0°00T %0°00T %0°00T %0°00T %0°00T
%S¢ %9°€ %6°C %9°€ %EC %6'T %' %1€ %Ce %8¢
%10 %00 %¥'0 %00 %00 %00 %00 %00 %00 %00
%68 %6 %S'Y %SG %88 %G9 %8'L %C'8 %8'L %6°L
%v'S %v'S %C'S %19 %S9 %v'8 %6'Y %S'S %S'Y %V'E
%EET %8'TT %€0T %L'8 %66 %L'8 %6, %0'8 %S'6 %.'8
%0°¢S %¢C'CS %LCS %805 %cC'CS %9'vS %8°LS %6'7S %875 %6°LS
%6°LT %8'LT %8'€C %t'Se %cC’'0C %867 %cC'67 %€'0C %€'0C %cC'6T
0¢0¢ 6T0C 8T0¢ LT0C 910¢ G102 ¥10¢ €102 ¢10e 1102

I 1qiyx3

‘0€ Jaquialdas papus Jes A |easi4 8y} 04

(Bununodoe Jo siseq [eniade)

SIea A [eosI4 ual 1se]

(psupneun) 12101 Jo a6e1UsdIad - SBIIAIOY [RIUBLUUIBAOS) - UONISOd 18N Ul sabuey)
epLIo| ‘sayouey 1S9MUIN0S JO UMO |

:S910N
SONUANSY [e43Ud9) 8101

SeEITEERNTN]
sBuluIes JUBWISBAUI PajdLIIsaIuN
SanuaAal _ScmEc._w>om._8c_ pa1oulsalun
s1d19931 016 U0 paseq saa) asiyouelH
sexel Aupnn
SOXe) WaIOoJeA Py
Saxe |
:S9NUBARY |edauaD)

sanuanay weahoud [e10L

suonnqLIU0d pue syueld jeyded
suonngLuod pue syuelb Bunelsdo
UOIYe81231 pUe SHiled
aWdojaAsp pue $adIAIRS Aunwiwo)
Aiayes o1jgqnd
JUBWILIBAOD [e18UBD)
:S901AIBS 10} SabieyD
:sanuanay weabold

sasuadx3 |e10 |

sableyd [easly pue 1salalu|
; S90InIBS Aouabiawgy
uonepodsuel |
UOIYea1231 pUe SHjled
Juswdojansp pue Sad1AIes Allunwwo)
Aiayes o1jgnd
JusWIUIBNOB [eJBURD)
:sasuadx3



1S

"1odal [eloueuly [enuue aAlsuayaldwod sieak sjqedlddy

:921N0S eleg

"020¢ 404 dlwapued GT-PINOD pue GTOZ 40} UeLIOQ dUedLLINH ‘§TOZ 40} BWI| 3UBILINH W4 BunINsal sanuanal % sainipuadxa asiidwod saolales Aouabiawa aisem pljos

:S910N
ceg'syT ¢ 6620TT'y ¢ (82T'026'S) $ (699'898) $ T29'G6 ¢ TIT'96E ¢ G6V'Z0T ¢ T96'16 $ TOLTT $ £68'9y ¢ uomsod 18N ul abueyd
(z62'122) (090'T¥T) (59.'G22) (Lz¥'502) (8z8'a8T) (££8'89T) (Lzg'esT) (z6¥'vLT) (To,'gzT) - sdajsued | 18N
GZ8'69¢ 6se'15¢'y  (€T¥'v69't)  (2vz'e9g) 6t7'18¢2 7¥6'79G 228's8¢ £G6%'992 Z07'0rT £68'0% saajsuel |
a410Jag (esuadx3) awoou|
£9T°0¢C 8/£'T¢ 156'8 €z2'0T LYT'S 110'182 0TT'LT 600'22 1212 00S'8
g9 0eT - - - 6.5'6.2 ¥£9'9T Shy'1e - - snoaue||30sIA
860'02 812'12 156'8 €z2'0T LYT'S 8617'T VA% 95 AN 00S'8 sBulues JuswiSanu|
:S9NUBAZY |edausD)
299'67¢€ 186'622'y  (P9g'coL's)  (S9v'eLe) 20€'9.2 198'€8¢ 21.2'89¢ viy'vie 182'8ET £6£'8¢ (ss071) anuanay 18N
6ET'S8L'T 9€2'GYL'S 9TS'60E'T TTE'Y90'T G62'€S0'T L¥S'SY0'T 9/%'050'T 99T'TTZ'T 1€1'6€G'T 958'029'T
- - . - - - - vI6'STT - - suonngLIuod
pue sjuelb Bunelado
219'0L €92'616'C - - - - - - - - , S92IAIS
Aousbiawia aysem pijos
L2SVTL'T €16'G6.L'T 9TG'60E'T TTEY90'T G62'€S0'T L¥S'SY0'T 9/¥'050'T 252'160'T LEL'65G'T 968'029'T 31Sem p1jos
:S93IAJBS J0J Sabreyd
:sanuanay weaboid
LLY'GEY'T GGZ'GTS'T 088'Z10'G 9/1'LEY'T £66'9.. 089'79. ¥9.'18. 221'996 9K TOP'T £9%'28S'T
065'9T 899'0ZT 890'669'C 0v£'GS9 - - - - - - 1 SBOINIBS
Aousbiawa aysem pijos
/88'8TY'T ¢ /8G'88E'T ZI8'CTE'T ¢ 9ev'c8. ¢ €66'9.L $ 08979, ¢ +92'T8. $ 22L'996 $ 9SV'TOV'T $ €97'Z8S'T ¢ 31Sem p1joS
:sasuadx3g
0202 6702 870¢ 1702 9102 G102 7102 €102 2102 1102 804N0S

I Hgyx3

‘0€ Jaquialdag papud Jea A [easiH 8yl 1o

(Bununoooe Jo siseq [enJade)
SIB9A |BISIH U] 1seT]

(pa1upneun) seniAnNdy adAl-sssuisng - uonisod 18N ul ssbuey)d
epII0|H ‘Sayouey 1S8MYIN0S JO UMO |



[4°]

111 MaIyx3 ees
| NaIUX3 89S |
:S910N
8EV'T8S'T ¢ €8G'86.'G  $ (9GL'€€T'e) $ T6S'ESr  $ O0EY'TS9'T ¢ O0ST'SOL'T ¢ ¥.T'2€G  $ G08'GEE'T $ 8v9'002  $ G879  $ uonmIsod 18N ui abueyd
298'C.G'6 TvE'265'6 625'999'8 8.7'6£€'8 eLT'ZY8'L 86978/, G92'€88'9 £G69'09.9 T2¢S'TT19'9 ¥5£'896'9 slajsuel] pue
SONUBAIY |eJdaua9) |elo |
(621'102) (z89'6TT) (¥18'972) (r02's6T) (r89'08T1) sy (212'9971) (e8¥'2sT) (085'92T1) 005'8 SaliAnoe adAy-ssauisng
T66'CLL'6 £20'LTL'6 £1e'e88's Z87'7€5'8 ¥68'220'8 ¥G1'229', Z87'6v0'L 9ET'ET6'9 TOT'8EL'9 ¥58'656'9 [SAIHALDE [EJUBLULIBA0D
-Slajsued |
puUe SaNUsAlY |edauss)
(v2r'166'L) (85.'86.°€) (G82'008'TT) (£89'G88'/) (evL'06T'9) (875'6.0'9) (160'15€'9) (878'79¢'S) (€28'0T¥'9) (695'507'9) anuanay (ssusdx3) 18N
08.'€0S'9 2.0'020'0T ¥90'TOV'S Y0g'0sE'y Z16'T.8'Y 969'€0S'y §69'2L2'Y 82T'TS9'Y YT 29E'y G08'ZTIE'Y senusAey weaboud e1oL
6ET'S8L'T 9eT'syL's 9TS'60'T TTE%90'T G62'€S0'T 1¥S'SY0'T 9/%'050'T 99T'TTZ'T 1€1'68G'T 958'029'T SaliAnoe adAy-ssauisng
T¥9'8TL'Y 9e8'v/2'Y 85160y £66'G92'S /T9'818'C 6YT'85Y'S 672’222’ 296'6EY'E LT¥'228'C 676'169'C [SANIANDE [eJUBLULIBA0D
:SanuaAsy weuaboid
¥02'S67' 7T 0€8'8T8'ET 6VE'T0Z LT 166'STZ'CT GG9'Z90'TT ¥2'€85'0T 98/'€29'0T 9/6'ST0'0T 120'€LL'0T v/€'8TL'0T sesusdx3 e10L
LIY'SEY'T GGZ'STG'T 088'2T0'S 9LL'LEV'T £66'9.L 089'T9. ¥9.'18/ 221'996 9G¥ TOV'T €9v'285'T SaliAnoe adAy-ssauisng
12/'6G0'€T $ G/G'€0E'CT $ 69¥'88T'CT $ GTC'8/L'0T $ 299'G82'0T ¢ +9G'T28'6 $ 220286 $ vGZ'6v0'6 $ TLG'TIE'6 $ TTI6'GET6 $ [SAIIALDR [eJUBLULIBA0D
:sasuadx3g
0202 6702 8702 1702 9102 GT0C ¥102 €102 2102 1102

‘0€ Jaquialdag papus Jea A [e9siH ay) 104

(Bununoooe Jo siseq [eniade)
SIedA |BOSIH U] 1seT]
(PalpneUN) UoNISOd 18N [e101 Ul sebuey)d
eplIoj4 ‘sayouey 1S8My1nos JO UMO |
Al NQIyx3



€S

‘uolresiBia] Buljgeus Jo 1nsal e se pajiodal AJJusling SUOIDLIISS OU 8Je 318yl ‘UMO] 8yl Aq

paloeua si uone|siba) Burgeus (g) Jo ‘pasn aq Aew $324N0Sal 3Y) MOY UO UOIIO1IISaI e sade|d ‘JuswWuIan0h [eiapay) ayl 10 BpLIojH JO a1e1S 8yl se yans ‘Alred [eualxa ue (T) usym AJuo palolisal
PBJBPISUOD I UOIISOd 9N "P3JOLIIS3IUN PUB P3JOLIS3I SI9SSE [e)Ided Ul JUSWISAUL J3U ISJUSLUSIEIS [BIOUBUL 3U} UI S)UBUOAWIOD 381y} Ul PaHIodal 8Q SI8SSe Jau Jey) a4inbal spiepuels Bununoddy |
:S910N

EVT'TP9'8S $ G0.'6G0°2S $ 22T'T9C'TS $ 8/8'W6E'VS $ /82'Tv6'eS $ 19868225 $ L0.¥8G'0S $ €€5°2G0°0S ¢ 82.°999'8y ¢ T9Z'6S6'8y ¢  uolusod umZuMmEcl_mSoO
Jewllid [e10

9€6'9T9'L 689'850°9 L8E'YSS G2'0L9'Y 796°G0S'Y 69.'612'9 196°G9¢€'S GTE'6E0'S Tev'es9'e €gss'oee’e pajuIsaiun
v0E'816 T¥2'G0E'T GOE'YYY'T GE0'8LE'T veT'6ve'T T9T'GE6 679665 1¢6'0L€ L0628 G55'9e.L perLIsay
€06'9.0'0G G/1'569'6Y AT 865'9v€'8Y 661°980'8Y L26'VET'SY L60°6T9'YY L62'Cy9'ry 00v'TeY v €ST'C68'rY slasse

[eaded Ul uswisaAul 19N

UBWIUIBA0S) Arewilid

22€'65. 68.'0T9 (01S'667'E) 89902y 1€€'686 9T.'c68 G09'.6V 0TT'S6¢E 6¥T'€0E 8i'T6¢ pa1oIsaIun
:Sa1IANYY adA1-ssauisng

128'T88'.S 9T6'8v7'9G 2€9'09.'vS 0TZ'V.6'€S 066'TS6°2S TYT'96€'TS 20T'280°0S €2r'1599'6Y 6.G'€SE'8Y €18'299'8Y uoIlisod 18N S8IIANIY
[eIUBLUUIBA0S) [e101gNS
¥79'958'9 006'L¥¥'S 168'€S0'y L1S'6vC'y 129'9T5'€ €50'92€'S 95€'898'y S0Z'vv9'y zLT'6veE'S GOT'6€0°C paoLasaiun
70€'876 TvZ'S0E'T SOE'vYY'T GE0'8.LE'T vZT'6ve'T T9T'GE6 69'665 T26'0L€ 106°28G GGG'9E. pa1oLisey
€06'920'06 $ G/.'G69'67 $ O0EV'C9C'6y $ 86S'9VEBY $ 66T1'980°87 $ LI6VET'SY $ 160619y $ L62°Cv9'vy $ 00V'TCv'vy $ €ST'268'vv $ sesse

[ended ur JuawiseAul 19N

:S311IAIOY [RIUBIUIBA0D)

0¢0¢ 6T0C 8T0C LT0C 9T0¢ GT0C 710¢ €10¢ ¢10¢ TT0¢C
‘0€ Jaquialdas Jo sy

(Bununodoe Jo siseq [enJade)
SIB9A |BOSIH U] 1SeT]
(pa1ipneun) H\Comﬁmo AQ UuoNISOd 18N 9PIM-1UBLIUIBACD)

epLIoj4 ‘sayouey 1S9MUIN0S JO UMO |
A NQIyx3



v

ANGIUXT

0coc

558,641,143

610Z

$57,059,705

AD34 [DISIH

810C Z10¢ 9groc sTo0c vroc €roc

$51,261,122
550,584,707
$50,052,533

N
n
=2
)
)
N
N
")
.

554,394,878
553,941,287

(Bununoooe Jo siseq [eniade)
SIB9A |BOSIH U] 1seT]
(Pe)pNeUN) UoIISOd 18N SPIM-JUSWIUIBA0D [0 L-1eyD
epIIo]4 ‘sayoury 1S8MYIN0S JO UMO |

44174

548,656,728

141174

548,959,261

000000°svS

000°000°2vS

0000006vS

000°000°TSS

000°000°€SS

000000°sSS

000°0002SS

000°0006SS




SS

"1Jodal Jeloueuly fenuue aAIsuayalduwod sieak ajqedlddy

%0°00T %0°00T %0°00T %0°00T %0°00T %0°00T %0°00T %0°00T %0°00T %0°00T
%T'T %0'T %7.°0 %L'T %C'T %60 %8'T %.L'T %0'T %T'¢
%.'0 %cC'T %80 %¥'0 %¢'0 %¢0 %T°0 %¢'0 %¢€"0 %€0
%0 %T¢C %0 %6°S %8°S %T'E %6'T %TV 4 %9'T
%00 %00 %00 %00 %00 %00 %00 %00 %C'T %¢C'E
%T'¢C %G'¢ %L'T %8'T %9°¢ %'E %8’ %¢E"L %C'T %380
%T'ST %891 %€ LT %9'9T %V 9T %T'8T %T'6T %€LT %9'6T %/.'9T
%¢E’S %6°S %L'S %P'E %¢C'9 %69 %0°L %L.'9 %E"L %¢C'8
%6'TT %/.'6 %¢Z'6 %99 %T'8 %69 %09 %T'S %G9S %0°'S
%7.°69 %3809 %9°09 %9°€9 %9°69 %109 %169 %9°.S %119 %¢c'¢9
[e10.] Jo abejusdiad
%0'€ %98 %0°0T %S0 %€'9 %08 %€'0- %6, %€¢C- %€E'€-
OvE'TLZ'YT $ 66L'0S8°€T $ 92T'6V2'CT $ 870'G6S'TT $ <¢¥9'GS9'TT $ 0/2'T96'0T $ GZ9'SKPT'OT $ 9096.T°0T $ LI8'TEV'6 $ 165'099'6
16V'8ST 26€'GET 6€€°/8 0,026T €09°07T 8€9°20T 09%7'8.T 2.8'T.LT %9026 97€86T
€G€'90T 090°0LT G89'20T €588y 0%9°'0¢ 099°6T 865'S Gel'LT 68.'0¢ 98/'Ge
67€'2.S Ly1°'G8¢2 990605 8¢7'989 90T'2.9 €16'TVe 96¢'68T CIVAVA RS 212'62¢ 89/'GST
- - - - - - - - Z98'€TT 129'60€
6T0'90€ 6£9°05€ T€C'CTC GOg'ETe 962'20€ 9ve'eLe L£€'88Y L10'TVL 08T'60T 9/0'GL
261'GST'C 6.€'22€'C T00'702'C 1T9026'T 188'CT6'T 906'786'T TS9'6E6'T 2LY'€9L'T €ee'8r8'T LTT'€T9'T
G¥0'2S. T09'VT8 Y9¥'0€L 696°'66E 022'T2L 18885, 8€6'20L GGE'€89 169689 69T°/8.
926'969'T TG8'GYE'T 1S0'G.T'T 65665, Z12'656 ¥26',G. GE6'709 169°LTS 0€8'T2S Z8s'z8y
6GE'€ZS'8 ¢ 0c€L'9zv'8 ¢ €82'8¢LL $ /18L'€l€'L $ 8/9'0v6'9 ¢ Tib'ce9'9 $ 09¥'TE0'9 $ ¢69'G98'S $ 0G8'T6L'S $ 92ZE'€009
0¢0¢ 6T0C 8T0¢C LT0¢C 9T0¢C STOC ¥10¢ €T0¢ ¢T0¢ TT0C

IA HQIYyX3

‘0¢ Jaquiaydas papu3 Jea A [easiH auy) Jo-

(Bunnunodoe Jo siseq [enJade paljipow)
SIB9A |BOSIH U] 1SeT]

; (PaMpNeUN) 804N0S AQ SBNUBASY [BIUBWUIBA0D) [BI8USD)

epLIoj4 ‘sayouey 1S9MUIN0S JO UMO |

:921N0S eleq

'sadA1 puny [eauswiuIan0B |je sapnjou .
:S910N

SoNUBAIY |el0 |

Snoaue||adsIAl
30U JUBLISBAU|

sluRID

safeyd 21WOoU028 pue [edlsAyd
SaJn}iaylo) pue saul4

Sa0IAJaS J0) sabieyD
[EUEIEY N IEI

snwuad pue sasuadi]

saxe |

IeaA Jold wouy abuey)d %
$ SaNUaA3Y 2101

Snoaue||asIN
aWO0dU1 JUBLLISBAU|

sjueID

safJeyd o1wou0ds pue |eaIsAyd
SaJn}ia}lo) pue saul4

S901AJBS 10} SabueyD
[ewuawulanohiaiu]

suwiad pue sesusdl

$ saxe |

321N0S aNUAAdY



99

Jes) |easiH
0¢0¢ 6T0¢ 8T0¢ LT0¢C 9T0¢ GT0¢ ¥710¢ €T0¢ ¢T0¢ TT0¢C
[%o) N~
2 g e S
S 3 7 5 o )
Q 3 = = S 2 ? 2

e & G+ F F °

> 2 ~

2 o —

N i @

< &>

b

SaNUaAdY |10

-$
000'000'C$
000°000'7$
000'000°9%
000'000'8$
000'000°0T$
000°000CT$
000000 7T$

000'0009T$

V-IA HQlyx3

(Bunnunodae Jo siseq [enJdae pallipow)
SIea A [e2SIH Ua] 1seT]
(pa1pneUN) SeNUBASY [RIUBWUUISA0D) [BA3USS) |B10 ] -14eyD
BpLIo]4 ‘sayouey 1S8MUIN0S JO UMO |




LS

"Jodal [eloueul) [enuue aAIsusyaldwod sieak ajgeoljddy

1821N0S eleq
%0°00T %6°L %EVT %L'LL 0¢0¢
%0°00T %18 %EVT %9°LL 6T0¢
%0°00T %€E'8 %097 %L'SL 8T0¢
%0°00T %.L'8 %.L'9T %S'v.L LT0C
%0°00T %8'8 %L'LT %S'EL 910¢
%0°00T %V'6 %€ 8T %ECL S10¢
%0°00T %cC0T %V'61 %¥'0L ¥10C
%0°00T %L'6 %961 %L'0L €10¢
%0°00T %€ 0T %6 8T %6°0L ¢10¢
%0°00T %€ 0T %0'8T %L'TL TT0¢

[e10] Jo abejusdlad

%0'¢y %L'L %C'ET %T'vS SJesA 0T 49A0

stejjoq ui abuey)d %
6GE'€CG'8  $ ¥EG'899 $ 28C'TCCT $ €PSEE99 8 0¢0¢
0€L'9¢¥'8 $ ¥81'9/9 $ 9T6'00CT $ 0£96VS'9 $ 6T0¢
€82'82.°, ¢ G00CY9 ¢ 199'8eC'T $ v¥I9'/¥8'G 8 810¢
[8L'€lE'L $ 896'CY9 $ VELVEZT $ GBO'G6Y'S $ L10¢
8/9'9¥6'9 ¢ 6E0YT9 $ <209'9¢¢’'T $ LE0'90T'S § 910¢
cvv'ze9'9  $ 699'TC9 $ 0CETCTICT $ €988l 8 q10¢
09%‘'T€E0'9 $ 695919 $ ¥8T'69T'T $ [LTLGWCY $ ¥10¢
269'G98'S  $ 66STLG  $ O9T9LVT'T $ LL99PTV $ €10¢
068'T6L'G ¢ 888'¢6S $ 1+¢9'C60T $ 8Ee'soTy ¢ ¢10¢
92e'c00'9 $ ¢es'0c9  $ ¥60'6.0T $ 00L€OEV  $ 1102

sjunowy
[e101 asiyouelH Alnn Aladoud ‘0€ 1aquueldas papu3]

1ea A [edsid
8yl Jo4

HA HQIYx3

(Bunnunodae Jo siseq [enJdde pailipow)

SIea A [eosiH Ua] 1seT]
(psupneun) Spun4 [LIUSLLIUIBAO0S) - 334N0S AQ SeNUaAaY Xe ]

epLIoj4 ‘sayouey 1S8MUIN0S JO UMO



asiysuni &
Aynn=

Auadoid &

o0zoc

D3/ [DISI

610C 8roc L102 9roc Ly A114 rvroc

(bununooae Jo siseq [eniade paljipow)
SIB9A |BOSIH U] 1seT]
(paupneun) spun4 [eIUBLIUIBAOS) - 824N0S AQ SeNUBASY Xe |
epII0]4 ‘sayouey 1S8MYINos JO UMO |

€roc

-Heyd

41114

Iroc

000000t

000000

000000

000000V

000000°s

0000009

0000002

0000008

0000006




65

‘1odal [eroueuly fenuue aAlsuayaidwod sieak ajqedljddy

:301N0S ereq

"020 404 olwapued 6T-PIAOD PUe 6TOZ 104 UBLIOQ 8UBILNH ‘BTOZ 10} BULI| BUBILUNH WO Burnsas saaniipuadxe astidwod saolales Aousblaws

%e'L

%09~

%8°0¢

%081~

%¥'S0T

%y

%G'LT-

%8'2¢

%L'€

%9'6T-

90LCvy'ET $ ¥98'7CSTT $ L¥6'ECE'ET $ v6L'G20TT $ SvE'0TC'TC $ vPC'82E'0T $ 69€'688'6 ¢ 859'886'TT $ 9.0'G9L'6 $ LIS'0CY'6

"sadA1 puny [eluBWIUIAA0H |Je Sapnjou| .
:S910N

JeaA Jolid woi- abuey) o

$ saanupuadx3 [e101

%€E’L %¥'8 %G8 %T'6 %T'T¢C %8, %8, %W'8¢ %cC'L %9t saanupuadx3 [ended-uonN [e10L

01 801AI3S 1g8Q [e10L JO oney

%08~ %9'T %LV %G'T9- %cC'TEC %G°0 %89/~ %6°88¢€ %E'T9 %9°G- Jes Joud wol- sbuey)d o

196°G06 16€'786 €817'896 097'G26 Z76'66£'C v0.L'v2L 0£2'T2L 965207’ 86G'7€9 €1E'e6E 90INJI8S 103 [e10 L
GEG'/TE zev'eee 868'777E 25€'6.¢€ $18'GEC 8/¥'ST¢ 29T'6TC 6€9'0TY 260°20¢ 006'09¢ safreyd [easty pue 1sausiul
Z€7'889 G96'059 G8G'€29 808'GrS 8¢T'v9T'C 922'605 890205 LT6'T69'C 905'zee ETV'CeT [ediound

:90IA18S 1030

%8°0¢ %6°LG- %T GET %/.'T6- %T 0€8 %9'v. %€ EV- %9'TT %T'LT %T'6G- Jes Jold wol- sbuey)d o

¥7€'086 T9G'TT8 ¥€G'G26'T 626878 109'758'6 G9G'650'T 088'909 G0S'040'T LT¥'656 67€'6T8 KepinQ [euded

%L L %6°C %v'CT %9°€ %8’V %¢C 0~ %G'6 % V- %10~ %L’ TT- Jes Joud wol- sbuey)d v

G6E'9GS'TT 906'82.'0T 0€6'627'0T G0.'T82'6 96/'G56'8 G/6'€¥S'8 652'T9S'8 /6S'GT8'. T90'TLT'8 GG8°202'8 usaIND [e10L
¥60CT 1424% ZvL'TS - - - - - - - ,SINIBS AKouabiawg
267291 6v2'TSY ¥62'9¢¥ €67'6SY zelieve T6¥'L2E L10'6EC 608752 T€0C2C TS6'T0OE uonenodsuel |
€€9'/01 99¢£'98¢ rT'T6E G80'€ot 209°,6¢ 6877'982 978'G6T 29v'see T26°LLT 2e0'erT uoljesidal pue sxied
8TS'TEL'T LIE'TSV'T T12'8G2'T L7996 82€'020'T 950658 TOE LLL 687'6TL 0S.°/88 16896/ Juswdojansp
pUE S821AI3S ALUNWIWOD
870'G89'9 2.0°0€€'9 ¥¥6'8%70'9 880°66£'S v.€'0%2'S 802'702'S 8€02rS'S 9€8'TZ8'v /88'G¥0'S 209°0€2'S Kisges o1jgnd
0T6'CS2'c $ 86G'S0T'c ¢ LEG'€SZ'c $ ¢6E'€0T'C $ 0L.'1766'T $ TEL'998'T ¢ LT0°208'T $ TO0'96LT $ CLV/E8'T $ EIV'9eL'T ¢ JuswuIaA0B [elausD)

ualIn)

0c0¢ 6T0C 8T0¢C LT0¢C 9T0¢C STOC ¥10¢ €T0¢ ¢T0¢ TT0C uo1ndunS

‘0g Jaquiaydas papu3 Jea A [easiH auy) Jo-

(Bununodoe Jo siseq [enJade paljipow)
SIB9A |BOSIH U] 1seT]
. (parpneun) uonound Ag seaniipusdx3 [EIUSWUIBA0D [e4aUsD
eplIo|4 ‘sayouey 1S8My1nos JO UMO |
A HAIYyX3



09

"1odal [eIoueULy [enuue dAIsUayaldwod sieak ajqedljddy

:921N0S eleg

"020 10} dlwspued GT-PINOD pue GTOZ 40} UBLIOQ dURILLNH ‘TOZ 04 BU| 8UBdLUNH Wol) Buninsas saimipusdxs astidwod sadiaies Aousbisw

'sadA) puny [ejuswiuIsAob e sepnjoul

:S910N

X1 Halyx3

‘0€ Jaquialdas papus JeaA [easiH 8yl 1o

. (paypneun) uonound Ag saanypuadx3 JusdunDd [eIUSWUIBA0L) [BI8UID)

(Bunnunodoe Jo siseq [enJade paljipow)

SIea A [eosiq ua] 1seT

epLIoj4 ‘sayouey 1S9MUIN0S JO UMO |

%0007 %0007 %0°00T 9%0°00T %0°00T 90007 %0°00T 9%0°00T %0°00T %0007 Jus.un [e1oL
%10 %00 %S0 %00 %00 %00 %00 %00 %00 %00 ,S39INIBs Aduabiaw
%0t %< %T'Y %LV %8'E %8'E %8¢ %E'E %L'¢C %L'E uorneuodsuel |
%G'E %9'€ %8'€E %E'Y %0 %¥'e %E'C %6°¢C %cC'¢C %L'T uoinesldal pue s)red
%0°ST %G'ET %TCT %T'0T %V'TT %T'0T %716 %¢'6 %6°0T %.'6 awdolanap
pue $32IAJ3S AJlUnwiwo)
%8°LS %065 %085 %cC'8S %SG'8S %6°09 %L'%9 %L'19 %8'T9 %L'€9 Ayayes a1jand
%3567 %967 %9'T¢ %.L'C¢ %E'Ce %8'T¢ %T'TC %0°€C %S'C¢ %¢C'T¢ JuaWuIdA0B [eIausD

RUEY1le)

[e10] Jo abejusdiad

G6E'9SS'TT$ 906'82.'0T$ 0£6'62v'0T$ S0L'T8C'6 ¢ 96.'G56'8 ¢ GL6'EYS'8 ¢ 6G2'T95'8 ¢ L6G'ST8'L ¢ T90'TLT'8 ¢ GG8'20C'8 ¢ Us1IND [e10 |
760'CT vve'y ZrL'1S - - - - - - - ,S801nuas Aouabusw
26T'L9Y 62 TSY ¥62'9¢Y £6V'6EY ceL'eye T6V'L2E L10'6€C 60875 T€0'cee TG6'TOE uolenodsuel |
€€9°L0V 99¢°'98¢ ZrT'16g G80‘E0v 209°.G€ 68177°98¢ 928'G6T 29v'eee T26'2.T 20Tyt uo1ealdal pue syied
8TG'TELT LLETSY'T T/2'852'T L¥9'9€6 82€'020'T 9G0'658 T0E'LLL 681'6T.L 0G.'/88 16896/ wawdolanap
pue $32IAJ3S AlUnwiwo)
80'G89'9 2L0'0EE9 ¥¥6'870°9 880'66E'S  v.IE'OVC'S 802'v02'S 8€0°CYS'S 9€8'Te8'y  188'G¥0'S 209'0€2'S Ayages o11gnd
0T6'CG¢'c $ 86G'G0T'C $ LEG'ESC'C $ ¢6E'EOT'C $ 0LL'766'T $ TEL'998'T $ LTOL08'T $ TO0'96L°T $ 2LV'L€8T $ ETV'9ELT $ JuawuIdA0b [elaus

RUEY[ile)

uonoun4

020¢ 6T0¢ 8T10¢ LT0¢ 910¢ ST0¢ ¥10¢ €102 Z10¢ T10¢



19

JeaA |eosiH
0¢0¢ 6T0¢C 8T0¢ LT0¢ 970¢ ST10¢ ¥T10¢ €10¢ ¢10¢ T70¢
N~
[e2]
7o) L0 —
© S > 3 L o 8 e
s 5 g5, Ze——e 0 & 5

© s 010_, e Lo w “ — IS

% 1 T o 3 s 8 o

w 7 @ oF

$11,556,395
$10,28,
$101429

saJnyipuadx3 1uadin) [e1o0L

-$

000'000'¢$

000°000'7$

000'000'9$

000°000'8$

000'000°0T$

000'0002T$

000°'0007T$

(Bununodae Jo SIseq [enJdade palipow)
SIea A [edsid ua] 1seT]

(paupneun) seanlipuadx3 1Usiin) |RIUSLIUISACS) [eA3USS) [L10] -11ey)d

epLIo|H ‘sayouey 1S8MUIN0S JO UMO |
V-XI1 Hgiyx3g




9

"1odal [eroueuly [enuue aAIsuayaIdwod sreak ajqeaijddy
:921N0S ereq

926'6v0'T ¢ G66'99¢'T ¢ (TT1'802) ¢ T89'vLL $ (G/8'8T9'T) ¢ 6S8'800'T $ €€9'6EV $ Oove've0'T $ ¢0e9sT ¢ 98¢'T€C  $ saoueled

pun4 ui aBueyd 18N

g6e'Tee 090°T¥T 0T.'99¢ L2y's02 828'5e6'L €EE'qLE L2e'esT 26C'7€8'C 195°68Y 90¢'T (sasn) se04nos

Buroueuly 4810 [e10L

(920'8¥9'2) (057°205'2) (185'TL¥'2) (0L£'TPT'2) (Lzz'T0T'Y) (£62'69L'T) (LyS'vLET) (zaT'982'T) (067'592'T)  (921'S.T'T) N0 siajsuel |
89£'698'C 0TZ'ev9'C 9%€'/69'C 161'9vE'C G50'/82'Y 929'8€6'T ¥/8'16S'T ¥v9'0TH'T T6T'76E'T 9/T'SLT'T ur sigjsuel |
- - G76'01T - 000'0G.'2 005'902 - 008'659°'C 098'09¢ 902'T swiall Jay1o

:(sasn) s924Nn0S
Buroueuld 18410

7£9'828 GE6'GCE'T (128'v.9) ¥62'695 (£0.'¥55'6) 925'€€9 90£'952 (zGo'018'T) (6Sz'ees) 080'0€2 seanupuadx3 480

sanuanay Jo (Aoualdlya) sseaxg

90L°ChY'eT ¥98'v2S'CT LV6'E€CEET ¥6.'G20'TT GYE'0TC'TC vve'8ee'0T 69£'688'6 859'886'TT 9/0'59.'6 LTS'0CY'6 saunyipuadx3 [ejo L

OvE'TLZYT $ 66L°0S8'CT $ 9¢T'6vL'CT $ 8V0'GRS'TT $ ¢r9'GS9'TT $ 0.L'T96°0T $ GZ9'GVT'OT $ 909'8.T'0T ¢ LI8'TEV'6 ¢ 1650596 ¢
0c0¢ 6T0C 8T0¢ L10¢ 9T0¢ ST0C 710¢ €T0¢ Z¢10¢ T10¢
‘0€ Jaquwialdag papul Jea A [eosld 8yl 10

S9NUBARY |el10 |

(Bunnunodoe Jo siseq [enadoe paljipow)
SIBIA |BOSIH U] 1seT]
(paupneun) spun4 [LIUBWUIBA0S) - S3duR|eg pun4 ul ssbuey) Jo Adewwing

epLIojH ‘sayouey 1SaMU1IN0S JO UMO |
X Hqiyx3



<I

X Halyx3

o0coc

51,049,926

AD34 [DISI]

$(1,618,875)

5(208,111)

610C

)
~
=]
N

Z10¢ 9roc sToZ vroc 134174

|

51,008,859
51,024,240

51,466,995

(Bununodae Jo SIseq [enJdade palipow)
SIea A [edsid ua] 1seT]
(pa1pneun) spun4 [eIUBWIUIBAOS) - Saouejeg pun4 ul ssbueyd-1reyd
epLIo|4 ‘sayoury 1S8MYIN0S JO UMO |

41174

Itoc

(000000°¢)s

(000‘000°2)s

(000000°T)s

000°000°TS

000°000°¢s

000°000°sS




Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (Unaudited)

Fiscal Year 2020 and Nine Years Prior
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Exhibit XI

September 30,
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
General Fund:
Nonspendable:
Prepaid items $ 31432 $ 207,568 $ 25222 $ 27,058 $ 28,763 $ 28,382 $ 29,569 $ 30,250 $ 30,858 $ 48,517
Inventory/assets held
for resale 138,848 138,848 482,720 482,720 482,720 482,720 482,720 359,210 359,210 359,210
Deposits 25,001 - - - - - - - - -
Total nonspendable 195,281 346,416 507,942 509,778 511,483 511,102 512,289 389,460 390,068 407,727
Restricted for:
Fire control and rescue
services - - - 128,291 308,982 363,897 484,719 423,679 335,061 292,113
Public safety 3,663 6,445 10,933 11,020 12,550 6,470 7,579 7,579 8,553 8,553
Town Hall brick program 16,800 18,200 - - - - - - - -
Building - - - - - 181,033 178,979 196,796 204,859 210,004
Total restricted 20,463 24,645 10,933 139,311 321,532 551,400 671,277 628,054 548,473 510,670
Committed to:
Tree preservation 20,877 20,877 3,086 3,086 3,086 - - 1,229 1,229 1,229
Capital projects - - 9,850 - - - 20,324 20,324 20,324 4,380
Total committed 20,877 20,877 12,936 3,086 3,086 - 20,324 21,553 21,553 5,609
Assigned for:
Capital projects - - - - - - - - - 17,500
Total assigned - - - - - - - - - 17,500
Unassigned 2,360,778 2,494,249 3,458,623 3,830,892 4,365,118 2,484,910 2,704,947 2,790,184 3,939,370 4,153,041
Total General Fund $ 2597309 $ 2,886,187 $ 3990434 $ 4483067 $ 5201219 $ 3547412 $ 3908837 $  3,829251 $ 4,899,464 $ 5,004,547
General Fund % Change
From Prior Year 24.1% 11.1% 38.3% 12.3% 16.0% -31.8% 10.2% -2.0% 27.9% 4.0%
All Other Governmental
Funds:
Nonspendable:
Prepaid items $ 810 $ 3349 $ 3,654 $ 3857 $ 1574 $ 2242 $ 2534 $ 2,613 $ 3574 $ 4,167
Deposits 15,000 - - - - - - - - -
Total nonspendable 15,810 3,349 3,654 3,857 1,574 2,242 2,534 2,613 3,574 4,167
Restricted for:
Transportation 696,179 517,455 312,740 389,361 331,973 636,587 537,821 758,804 710,632 398,610
Fire control and rescue
services 40,376 40,807 47,248 70,977 281,656 161,137 168,937 37,036 46,136 39,024
Capital projects - - - - - - - 20,411 - -
Total restricted 736,555 558,262 359,988 460,338 613,629 797,724 706,758 816,251 756,768 437,634
Committed for:
Capital projects - 150,000 60,376 209,053 359,943 149,213 224,661 217,088 458,204 64,738
Transportation - - - - - 129,678 593,825 291,955 522,639 1,922,934
Total committed - 150,000 60,376 209,053 359,943 278,891 818,486 509,043 980,843 1,987,672
Assigned to:
Debt service 164,278 37,548 15,069 28,448 36,534 12,079 25,266 168,819 124,143 217,623
Public safety 129,750 - - - - - - - - -
Fire wells 80,000 - - - - - - - - -
Capital projects 109,873 354,621 584,686 269,077 249,800 205,476 156,624 84,417 112,597 185,672
Total assigned 483,901 392,169 599,755 297,525 286,334 217,555 181,890 253,236 236,740 403,295
Total All Other
Governmental Funds $ 1,236,266 $ 1,103,780 $ 1,023,773 $ 970,773 $ 1,261,480 $ 1296412 $ 1,709,668 $ 1,581,143 $ 1,977,925 $ 2,832,768
All Other Governmental Funds
% Change From Prior Year -18.1% -10.7% -7.2% -5.2% 29.9% 2.8% 31.9% -7.5% 25.1% 43.2%
Total Governmental Funds $ 3833665 $ 3,089,967 $ 5014207 $ 5453840 $ 6462699 $ 4843824 $ 5618505 $ 5410394 $ 6,877,389 $ 7,927,315
All Governmental Funds
% Change From Prior Year 15.1% 4.1% 25.7% 8.8% 18.5% -25.0% 16.0% -3.7% 27.1% 15.3%

Data Source:
Applicable years' comprehensive annual financial report.
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Exhibit XI11-A

Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Chart-Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates (Unaudited)

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(rate per $1,000 of assessed taxable value)
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Total Property Tax Levies and Collections (Unaudited)

Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Exhibit X1V

Collected Within the

Total

Total Taxes Fiscal Year of the Levy * Collections to Date
Fiscal Levy for Percentage Collections in Amount Percentage
Year Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Subsequent Years Collected of Levy
2011 $ 4,479,936 $ 4,275,648 95.44% % 61,831 $ 4,337,479 96.82%
2012 $ 4318983 $ 4,131,352 95.66% % 124971 $ 4,256,323 98.55%
2013 $ 4,323515 $ 4,256,493 98.45% % 64,519 $ 4,321,012 99.94%
2014 $ 4,433,004 $ 4,389,935 99.03% $ (9,075) $ 4,380,860 98.82%
2015 $ 5,142,216 $ 4,964,524 96.54% % 4,778 $ 4,969,302 96.64%
2016 $ 5,412,805 $ 5,285,675 97.65% $ 7547 $ 5,293,222 97.79%
2017 $ 5,800,986 $ 5,687,676 98.05% $ 17984 ¢ 5,705,660 98.36%
2018 $ 6,181,457 $ 6,045,637 97.80% $ 17372 ¢ 6,063,009 98.08%
2019 $ 6,832,483 $ 6,783,089 99.28% % 19,191 $ 6,802,280 99.56%
2020 $ 6,913,163 $ 6,838,577 98.92% % - $ 6,838,577 98.92%
Notes:

! Includes discount taken for early payment of property taxes and current year refunds.

Data Source:

Broward County Property Appraisal Office.
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Exhibit XVII
Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida

Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt (Unaudited)
September 30, 2020

Estimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Underlying
Governmental Unit Outstanding Applicable Debt
Overlapping Debt"?
Broward County $ 134,458,000 0.677890% $ 911,478
Broward County School Board 1,882,299,000 0.006828% 128,532
Sub-Total Overlapping Debt 1,040,010
Town Direct Debt 9,659,946
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 10,699,956

Notes:

! Applicable percentage was estimated by determining the portion of the Town's assessed value that is within the County's
geographic boundaries.

Data Source:
2 Each specific government.
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Exhibit XVII1
Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida

Demographic and Economic Statistics (Unaudited)
Last Ten Calendar Years

(in $1,000) Per
Total Capita Unemployment Rate

Calendar Personal Personal State of United
Year Population * Income *° Income * County ® Florida ° States °
2011 7,345 $ 66,797,269 $ 38,101 9.3% 10.6% 9.1%
2012 7,385 $ 78,687,882 $ 44,429 7.5% 8.1% 7.8%
2013 7,396 $ 80,525,783 $ 45,120 5.6% 6.7% 7.3%
2014 7,676 $ 80,905,552 $ 44,850 5.2% 6.0% 5.7%
2015 7,761 $ 85,167,498 $ 46,607 4.9% 5.3% 5.0%
2016 7,852 $ 86,987,787 $ 46,906 4.6% 5.0% 4.9%
2017 7,892 $ 91,224,860 $ 48,680 3.3% 3.8% 4.2%
2018 7,958 $ 95,409,356 $ 50,269 2.8% 3.5% 3.7%
2019 7,981 $ 102,145,579 $ 51,820 2.8% 3.2% 3.5%
2020 7,957 $ {i} $ {i} 7.8% 7.2% 7.9%

Notes:

There are no public schools located within the Town.

Data Sources:
! Florida Legislative Office of Economic and Demographic Research
2020 per US Census Bureau.
2 2010 and 2011 estimated by management.
¥ Broward County comprehensive annual financial reports.
* Broward County total personal income divided by the Broward County population.
® Real Estate Center, http://recenter.tamu.edu/data/emp/emps/st12.asp.
Sus. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, http://data.bls.gov/cgi-bin/surveymost & US Census Quick Facts.
{i} Information not available from County
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Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Principal Employers (Unaudited)

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020 and 2011

Exhibit XIX

Employer

Lowe's Home Centers, Inc.

Publix Supermarkets

Archbishop McCarthy High School
Romeus Cuban Restaurant
McDonald's

Starbucks Coffee Company
Walgreens

Original Pancake House

Apple Montessori School

R&R Garden Center

Total Principal Employers

Employer

Lowe's Home Centers, Inc.

Publix Supermarkets

Archbishop McCarthy High School
McDonald's

Applebee's Neighborhood Grill
Apple Montessori School

Romeus Cuban Restaurant
Original Pancake House

Starbucks Coffee Company
Walgreens

Total Principal Employers

Data Source:
Town records.

Type of
Business

Retail

Retail

Private School
Restaurant
Restaurant
Restaurant
Retail
Restaurant
Private School
Nursery

Type of
Business

Retail

Retail

Private School
Restaurant
Restaurant
Private School
Restaurant
Restaurant
Restaurant
Retail

76

2020

Number of
Employees

Rank

165
157
138
40
35
27
18
16
15
6

617

2011

© 00 NOoO O WN -

[y
o

Number of
Employees

Rank

125
100
76
70
46
45
36
28
27
18

571

© 00 ~NO O WN -

[EN
o



Exhibit XX
Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Town Full-Time Funded Positions by Function/Program (Unaudited)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Function/program

Town Commission 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5

General Government:

Town management 5 5 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Community services * 10 10 14 13 13 15 13 13 13 13
Total General Government 15 15 17 16 16 18 16 16 16 16

Contracted Employees:
General government,

management services 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Fire rescue 43 43 50 50 44 44 46 46 50 50
Emergency medical services 4 4 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15
Police protection 15 15 15 16 16 16 16 16 16 16
Total Contracted Employees 66 66 84 85 79 79 81 81 85 85
Total 86 86 106 106 100 102 102 102 106 106

Percentage Change From
Prior Year 41.0% 0.0% 23.3% 0.0% -5.7% 2.0% 0.0% 0.0% 3.9% 0.0%

Notes:
! Community services includes parks and recreation, community development, transportation, executive, clerk and finance departments.

Data Source:
Town of Southwest Ranches Community Services and Finance Departments.
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Exhibit XXI
Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida

Operating Statistics by Function/Program (Unaudited) !
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function/Program 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

GENERAL GOVERNMENT:

Building Permits Issued 2 433 422 403 407 377 531 566 636 609 625

Broward County 2 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Building Permits Closed - - - - - 475 396 533 611 656

Building Inspections Conducted:

CAP Government Services Inc.: N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Electrical ® 381 366 440 417 471 472 683 732 1087 1674
Fire 2 24 19 11 17 19 5 8 29 21 231
Mechanical 2 163 126 169 134 246 249 251 201 264 643
Plumbing ? 306 300 332 414 538 482 590 527 843 1618
Structural 2 1283 1457 1410 1526 1818 1624 1965 2282 2824 4425
Zoning 2 35 7 11 74 75 104 153 213 246 573
Other 2 13 2 3 28 24 20 39 109 83 332

Total building inspections 2,205 2,277 2,376 2,610 3,191 2,956 3,689 4,093 5,368 9,496

Certificates of Use Registrations ® 35 23 11 14 2 4 17 1 20 14

Planning & Zoning Permits Issued 213 177 153 148 196 230 318 238 317 279

FIRE:

Emergency Responses 4 403 437 685 747 791 912 789 799 648 546
Station 112 Average Response Time * - - 5:58 6:13 5:52 5:10 5:17 5:57 6:42 7:19
Inspections 40 31 98 98 165 84 146 185 202 170

POLICE:®
Physical arrests 132 7 54 43 43 33 29 33 43 38
Parking violations 2 - 2 - - - 3 - - 71
Traffic violations 3,025 1,225 1,011 2,174 2,416 1,773 1,369 1,673 1,824 1,568

REFUSE COLLECTION: °

Residential SW- mo. avg in tons 10.89 26.45 287.54 262.29 258.71 257.34 344.16 261.58 257.77 282.79
Residential Recycling - mo. avg in tons 7.63 8.51 36.54 51.20 62.98 64.01 67.46 78.41 76.79 76.35
Residential Bulk - mo. avg in tons 78.90 70.11 593.63 698.53 790.07 719.54 1,283.00 707.96 687.68 736.01

OTHER PUBLIC WORKS:®

Street resurfacing (in miles) - 0.95 - - - 2.28 - 2.95 - -
Potholes repaired 107 112 88 93 107 222 224 255 183 164
WATER:

New connections 1 1 - 1 3 4 3 10 5 3
Average daily consumption

(thousands of gallons) 13.47 12.02 11.52 10.26 10.66 12.16 13.63 13.26 14.46 13.52
Peak monthly consumption

(thousands of gallons) 556 440 419 428 417 420 483 502 526 485

General Government Tax Rates:
Utility Services:

Electric 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10%

Communication Services 5.22% 5.22% 5.22% 5.22% 5.22% 5.22% 5.22% 5.22% 5.22% 5.22%

Gas 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10%
Franchises:

Electric 5.90% 5.90% 5.90% 5.90% 5.90% 5.90% 5.90% 5.90% 5.90% 5.90%

Solid Waste (commercial) 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10%

Towing 13% 13% 13% 13% 15% 15% 15% 15% 18% 18%
Notes:

* Information not presented is not available.

2 Information provided by CAP Government Services Inc.

® Information provided by Code Services Inc. for 2011-2018 and JA Medina LLC for thereafter.

* Information provided by Broward County Sheriff's Office for western portion of Town and information for the eastern portion of the Town not available from
the Town of Davie 2010-2011. Information for 2012 provided by Pembroke Pines. Information since 2013 provided by Town of Davie.

® Information provided by Town of Davie (2014-Present) and BSO (2010-2013).

® Information provided by Town Contractors. 2013 change from daily average to monthly pertaining to refuse collection.

" Information provided by City of Sunrise and Cooper City Public Works. The Town's residents obtain their water supply from wells and septic tanks except
for certain residents who have privately connected with the City of Sunrise or Cooper City.
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Exhibit XXI1
Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program (Unaudited)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function/Program 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
FIRE:
Stations * 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Vehicles owned *

POLICE:
Stations * - - - . § . . . . .
Patrol units 15 15 15 16 16 16 16 16 16 16

OTHER PUBLIC WORKS:

Streets (miles) 82 82 82 82 82 82 82 82 82 82
Streetlights 2 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13
Vehicles owned * - - - - - 2 2 2 2 2

PARKS AND RECREATION:

Acreage 149.01 149.01 149.01 149.01 149.01 149.01 149.01 149.01 149.01 149.01
Community Center - - - - 1 1 1 1 1 1
Playgrounds 1 1 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 3
Equestrian ring 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Picnic pavilion 1 1 1 1 2 2 4 4 5 5
Restroom facilities 1 1 1 1 3 3 3 3 3 3
Nature trails (miles) 15 1.5 15 15 15 5 5 5 5 5
Multi-use trails (miles) 17.35 17.35 17.35 17.35 17.35 17.35 17.35 17.35 17.35 17.35
Vehicles owned * - - - - - 1 1 1 1 1
WATER:

Water mains (miles) 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Fire wells 285 285 285 286 286 286 286 284 284 291
Fire hydrants * - - - - - - 95 95 95 117
Lakes (acres) ° 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0
Canals (miles) ® 42.0 42.0 42.0 42.0 42.0 42.0 42.0 42.0 42.0 42.0

Data Sources:
Various Town departments unless otherwise noted.

Notes:

! Items not presented, provided by a contractor.
2 Only streetlights and traffic signals are on Griffin Road which is owned and maintained by Broward County.

® Information provided by City of Sunrise Utilities Department. Unable to determine how many miles of water mains have been added
since 2005.

* Information provided by Town of Davie Fire Marshall. Fire hydrants owned and maintained by City of Sunrise.
> Information provided by South Broward Drainage District. Unable to obtain information from Central Broward Water Control District.
® Information provided by South Broward Drainage District and Central Broward Water Control District.
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Keefe 5)
McCullough

CPA’s + Trusted Advisors

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor, Town Council and Town Administrator
Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements
of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida (the “Town”), as of and
for the year ended September 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated March 5, 2021.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

KMCcpa.com | 6550 N Federal Hwy, 4th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 Phone: 954.771.0896 Fax: 954.938.9353
Top 25 Accounting Firms | South Florida Business Journal Top 400 Accounting Firms in the U.S. | INSIDE Public Accounting
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Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Town’s internal control or on compliance. This reportisan integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control
and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Kl Ml

KEEFE McCULLOUGH

Fort Lauderdale, FL
March 5, 2021
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CPA’s + Trusted Advisors

MANAGEMENT LETTER IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RULES OF THE AUDITOR
GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

To The Honorable Mayor, Town Council and Town Administrator
Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida
(the “Town™), as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020, and have issued our
report thereon dated March 5, 2021.

Auditor’s Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of
the Auditor General.

Other Reporting Requirements

We have issued our Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards; and Independent Accountant’s Report on an
examination conducted in accordance with AICPA Professional Standards, AT-C Section 315,
regarding compliance requirements in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor
General. Disclosures in those reports, which are dated March 5, 2021, should be considered in
conjunction with this management letter.

Prior Audit Findings

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding
financial audit report. There were no findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual
financial audit report.

Official Title and Legal Authority

Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and
legal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be
disclosed in this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. This
information is disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements.

KMCcpa.com | 6550 N Federal Hwy, 4th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 Phone: 954.771.0896 Fax: 954.938.9353
Top 25 Accounting Firms | South Florida Business Journal Top 400 Accounting Firms in the U.S. | INSIDE Public Accounting
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Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida

Financial Condition and Management

Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate
procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether or not the Town has met one
or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the
specific condition(s) met. In connection with our audit, we determined that the Town did not meet
any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied
financial condition assessment procedures for the Town. It is management’s responsibility to
monitor the Town’s financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on
representations made by management and review of financial information provided by same.

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any
recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have any
such recommendations.

Additional Matters

Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance
with provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to
have occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but warrants
the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not note any
such findings.

Purpose of this Letter

our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida
Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, Members of the Town Council, and
applicable management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

Kafy MeCaltugh

KEEFE McCULLOUGH

Fort Lauderdale, FL
March 5, 2021
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
SECTION 218.415, FLORIDA STATUTES

To The Honorable Mayor, Town Council and Town Administrator
Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida

We have examined the Town of Southwest Ranches, Florida’s (the “ Town”) compliance with
the requirements of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, Local Government Investment Policies, during
the year ended September 30, 2020. Management is responsible for the Town’s compliance with
the specified requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Town’s compliance
with the specified requirements based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Town complied, in all
material respects, with the specified requirements referenced above. An examination involves
performing procedures to obtain evidence about whether the Town complied with the specified
requirements. The nature, timing, and extent of the procedures selected depend on our judgment,
including an assessment of the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the Town’s compliance with specified
requirements.

In our opinion, the Town complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements
for the year ended September 30, 2020.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of Members of the Town Council,
management, and the State of Florida Auditor General and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Ky Ml

KEEFE McCULLOUGH

Fort Lauderdale, FL
March 5, 2021
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